
Fair Park Committee Agenda 
Jefferson County 

Jefferson County Fair Park 
Activity Center  

503 N. Jackson Avenue  
Jefferson, WI 53549 

 
Date: Thursday, June 7, 2018 
Time: 8:30 am 
 
Committee members:  Poulson, Blane  (Chair)   Hartz, Peter   

Spaanem, Alyssa (Vice Chair)  Nelan, Conor     
 White, Brandon  (Secretary)  Hall-Kind, Debra 

     Steindorf, Kathleen 
 

1. Call to order 
2. Roll call (establish a quorum) 
3. Certification of compliance with Open Meetings Law  
4. Approval of the agenda 
5. Approval of Fair Park Committee minutes of May 3, 2018 
6. Communication 
7. Public Comment  

(Members of the public who wish to address the Committee on specific agenda items must register their request at this time) 
8. Overview of Open Meetings Law 
9. Discussion and possible action on committee member shirt order for fair week 
10. Discussion and possible action on Strategic Plan 
11. Review of Community Feedback & Suggestions on Fair Operations 

12. Discussion on how to improve and increase non-fair events 
13. Discussion and possible action on Marketing Partnerships and Sponsorships 
14. Review of Financial Report 
15. Review of Supervisor’s Report 
16. Review of Office Report 
17. Discussion and possible action on future meeting schedule and agenda items 
18. Adjourn 

 
Next scheduled meetings: 
 

Regularly scheduled meetings in the Activity Center Conference Room at 
8:30 a.m. on the 1st Thursday of the month: 

July 5, 2018 
Meetings to be held at 2:00 p.m. outside the main gate off Puerner Street: 

July 11, 2018 
July 12, 2018 
July 13, 2018 
July 14, 2018 
July 15, 2018 

 
A Quorum of any Jefferson County Committee, Board, Commission or other body, including the Jefferson County Board of 
Supervisors, may be present at this meeting. 

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at this meeting should contact the County Administrator 24 hours 
prior to the meeting at 920/674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made. 



Jefferson County Fair Park  
May 3, 2018 | Meeting Minutes 
 
The Jefferson County Fair Park committee met on Thursday, May 3rd at 8:02 a.m. in the Activity Center Conference 
Room. Present were: (Fair Committee) Blane Poulson, Alyssa Spaanem, Brandon White, Conor Nelan, Debra Hall-Kind, 
Kathy Steindorf , Fair Park Supervisor Roger Kylmanen, Marketing/Administrative Assistants Amy Listle and Renee 
Busshardt and County Board Chairman James Schroeder.  Peter Hartz was not present.  
 
A quorum of the Jefferson County Fair Park Committee was present, meeting duly noted and the door open.  
 
Review and Approve Agenda 
 
Minutes: A motion was made to accept the minutes of the April 5, 2018 meeting as presented and seconded.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Communications: A thank you email from Lifeline and a thank you letter from Wisconsin Equine Practitioners 
Association (WEPA). 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Review of Community Feedback and suggestions on Fair Operations: None 
 
Election of Committee Chair, Vice and Secretary:  Alyssa Spaanem made a motion to nominate Blane Poulson as the 
Committee Chair, seconded by Kathy Steindorf.  Debra Hall-Kind moved to close the nominations, seconded by Kathy 
Steindorf.  Unanimous vote in favor of Blane Poulson.  Alyssa Spaanem was nominated by Blane Poulson for Vice 
Chairman, seconded by Kathy Steindorf.  There was no opposition.  Debra Hall-Kind moved to close the nominations, 
seconded by Kathy Steindorf.  Unanimous vote in favor of Alyssa Spaanem for Vice Chairman.  Brandon White was 
nominated by Blane Poulson to be Secretary, Kathy Steindorf seconded.  Debra Hall-Kind moved to close the 
nominations, seconded by Kathy Steindorf.  Unanimous vote in favor of Brandon White for Secretary. 
 
Review of Community Feedback & Suggestions on Fair Operations:  People are liking the Fair postings on Facebook. 
 
Discussion on how to improve and increase non-fair events:  A suggestion was made to contact Harley Davidson, 
whose 115th anniversary celebration is soon, to make them aware that we have camping.  Also maybe put this on 
Facebook. 
 
Discussion and possible action on Marketing Partnerships and Sponsorships:  There is a continued effort to retain 
current sponsors and to obtain new ones.  Amy Listle updated the committee as to who was contacted and who still needs 
to be and presented the different sponsorships tiers that have been developed.  Kathy Steindorf suggested to give 
organizations choosing the Friend of the Fair option the opportunity to get a booth at the fair for a discount.  A motion to 
approve the sponsorship opportunities with any amendments discussed at the meeting was made by Debra Hall-Kind and 
seconded by Kathy Steindorf.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Financial Report: Review of February 2018 financials. 
 
Supervisor’s Report: Roger Kylmanen gave an update as to the progress on the updates to the wash rack and swine barn.   
The grant Roger applied for from Compeer for swine barn improvements was approved.  The temporary US Cellular 
tower put up in the southwest corner behind the storage barn was an improvement on the US Cellular cell service.  Calls 
on Verizon during the car show were being dropped whereas the US Cellular calls were able to be completed.  The 
Dairyland Dog Show will be held this weekend and the fair park’s first horse show will be the weekend of May 12 & 13. 



  
Office Report:  April Fair Park events have been reconciled.  Junior Fair entry deadline is May 18.  Open class entries are 
due June 15.  The fair office sent a mailing to all past open/senior exhibitors to encourage them to sign up for the fair.  
There were numerous fair sign up presentations to help people register for fair. Winter storage is all picked up.  The fair 
car has been wrapped to promote the fair.  Family 5-packs will be on sale now until July 10th or when sold out.  Vendor 
contracts are available and vendor payments have been coming in.  Layouts for the vendors have been changed to try to 
better accommodate the indoor vendors.  Yard signs are in and have begun to be distributed.  Work continues on the 
following:  Advertising; Sponsorships; Entertainment Contracts; Vendor Contracts. 
 
Discussion and possible action on future meeting schedule and agenda items:  Agenda items-Shirt embroidery for 
committee members; Fair Park strategic plan.  The committee agreed to change the start time of the committee meetings 
from 8:00 a.m. to 8:30 a.m.. 
 
Next Meeting: Meetings will be held at 2:00 p.m. outside the main gate off of Puerner Street each day of the fair when 
needed.  
 
With no further business, Alyssa Spaanem made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Kathy Steindorf seconded. Motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned at 9:18 a.m.  
 



 
 
 
 
Jefferson County Fair Assessment Summary 
 
 
I met with Fair Park Director, David Diestler on Wednesday February 22, 2017.  We had 
a very informative discussion on the past, present and future of the Jefferson County 
Fair and Fair Park.  The Jefferson County Fair Park is an agency of Jefferson County. 
The Fair Park Director is appointed by the County Administrator. Policy guidance is 
provided by the Fair Park Committee, which consists of five members of the Jefferson 
County Board and two at-large members.  Day to day management is led by the Fair 
Park Director and a small full-time staff consisting of two Marketing/Administrative 
assistants, one Grounds Supervisor and one Grounds worker.  Part-time staff are added 
throughout the year as needed to fulfill event needs. Separating the Jefferson County 
Fair Park as business unit within the county structure and working to operate financially 
on a minimum break even basis without the use of property taxes or county funds 
should be a priority.  In my opinion all county funds allocated to the Fair Park should be 
used for Capital Improvements.  I will address my comments to the entire year-round 
operations of the Jefferson County Fair Park concentrating on the Jefferson County Fair 
and suggesting opportunities to increase operating revenue and decrease expenses to 
achieve this minimum break even operating budget, with the idea of continuing 
increasing profits well into the future.  Addressing future maintenance and capital 
improvements will require increasing this cash position by either increasing revenues or 
decreasing expenses. 
 
 
Your operating year-round loss for 2016, taking out you’re the property tax levies was 
$90,278.  It is hard to break this out between fair and non-fair with the way the county 
allocates the expenses especially the wages to each area.  Following the allocation of 
the county, the Fair shows a loss of $41,376 and the non-fair activities show a loss of 
$48,902.  The allocation of wages and benefits seems to be one third fair and two thirds 
non-fair.  This is probably heavy on the non-fair side and distorts the actual performance 
of each area.  I will concentrate my report on the fair operations where I feel there is 
more opportunity to grow, but I feel management and the Fair Committee should look at 
the non-fair rental rates and do a profit and loss statement for each event to determine if 
events are economically feasible to the Fair Park.  Your non-fair revenues seem low for 
the number of events you host each year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Jefferson County Fair revenue sources are gate admission fees, carnival ride 
percentage, carnival food and games rent, vendor and exhibitor flat rental rates, alcohol 
percentage sales, camping, grandstand reserve seat admission, entry fees and 
sponsorships. 
 
Fair admission currently is: 

$ 10 (6yrs and over) High for 6-12 yrs. old compared to similar fairs 
$ 5 before 5pm Wed, Thu, and Fri. 
Children under 6 Free  
$35 for family 5 pack in advance 
Parking Free 

  Gate admission receipts for 2016 were $211,459 
  $5.57 per reported attendee (very low to comparable fairs) 
 
 
Carnival revenue is a percentage of ride gross (25%), plus flat footage ($35 per foot) for 
carnival concessions and flat footage for games ($5 per foot), plus a $500 for camping 
fees. Footage rates for food and games is low.  Suggest looking at receiving percentage 
of food and games in future contract negotiations. 
 Carnival paid fair in 2016: 

 $31,283  
 

Vendor/Concession rates: 
 Food concessions pay flat footage charge plus electric ($38 per front foot) 
 Two stands pay 15% of gross 
 Non-food vendors outside pay $35 per front foot plus electric 
 Indoor vendors pay $275 for 10’ x 10’ space includes table and two chairs 
 Vendors receive 10 admission tickets pay for rest if needed  
 Fair received $55,226 in alcohol sales percentage 
 Non-Fair received $ 7,128 in alcohol sales percentage 
 
Grandstand: 
 General Admission: Free  
                 
 Wednesday, Thursday and Sunday (all free) 
  Dirt Motor Events 
 Friday and Saturday 
  Music Concerts 
  Paid reserved and Party Pit seats available 
  
Fair Camping Revenue: 
 $ 22,865 for duration of fair 
 $ 60,255 for non-fair events  
 
 
 



Sponsorships: 
$ 37,000 year-round cash sponsors in 2016 
$ 87,405 fair cash sponsors in 2016   
 No incentives for staff to solicit new sponsors 
 Sponsorship are not very creative and provide no 
 marketing opportunities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITES 
 
 
What if: 
 
Jefferson County Fair starts a strong advance on-line discount sales program? 
 

 Sell advance admission for $6 (40% discount) online print at home 
 Add a $6 youth price 6-11 yrs. old at gate 
 Eliminate $5 promotion on Wed, Thu and Fri before 5pm.  Do $5 promotion days 

if tied into a sponsor to cover your lost revenue  
 Per cap admission (based on your reported attendance) is $5.57. Advance price 

would be above this 
 Creates weather insurance as you have money in advance 
 Allows ability to create discount bundle packages that include admission, VIP 

grandstand seating and food vouchers 
 Create $5 food/beverage voucher that could be sold in bundles, to groups or 

businesses. 
 Increase revenues 
 Guaranteed sales 
 Creates great marketing opportunities online and on social media 
 Creates urgency to attend fair. 
 Online sales can be tied into present web site company Saffire 
 Create urgency to attend fair 
 Create marketing opportunities year round 

 
 

 
 



Creates $5 food/beverage vouchers? 
 

 Creates a marketing and sales opportunity 
 Can be used at any concession or beer stand 
 Treated as $5 cash for vendors 
 Vendor exchanges for cash as part of settlement with fair 

 
 
 
Implement a percentage of sales rent structure for all food vendors 
 

 Suggest 15% at first (standard in the industry is 18-25%) 
 Increase revenues 

 Fair and consistent to all concessionaires 

 Pricing to the public would be consistent 
 You have too many food vendors for the size of your fair.  You are just selling 

real estate now. 
 Allows you to reduce number of vendors without reducing your revenues 

 Would provide more space to have food vendors create seating areas 

 Have more incentive to promote food and new food items knowing you would 
share in increased revenues 

 Food vouchers sold in advance with no cost to vendors but you receive your 
percentage 

 Create new food contests to increase urgency to attend fair 
 
Increase non-food vendor rates? 
 

 Standard in industry for similar sized fairs is $35-$40 per foot for 10’x10’  
 Increase revenues 

 Increase quality of vendors 

 Could justify less vendors with higher quality products 
 
 
Implement a modern online and gate electronic ticketing program? 
 

 Allow fair to sell advance tickets and savings bundles online and print at home 

 Sell sponsorship on print at home tickets 

 Market through your website 

 Increase sales 

 Real time data for future planning 

 Reduce errors at gate sales locations 

 Can be used for grandstand sales also 
 

 
 



Modernize and redo your marketing plan and advertising buy? 
 

 Reduce costs of advertising 
 Reallocate Fair marketing 
 Move to higher social media advertising 
 Better return on spending  
 Decrease total advertising spending (Presently seems a little high compared to 

similar sized fairs) 
 Redo all printed materials  
 Research other fairs marketing materials 

 
 
Design strategic plan, goals and prioritized action plan for the future? 
 

 Create task force to create strategic plan now 

 Analyze feasibility of adding a new multi-purpose facility 

 Prioritize maintenance, improvement and capital projects  
 Create funding opportunities 

 Get the community involved 
 
Change entire layout of Fair? 

 Prepare a plan of present people traffic patterns and research ways to move 
people off the main street. 

 Lot of beautiful park space not used efficiently at Fair 
 Flat rental rates for concessionaires results in selling real estate with no 

opportunity to move vendors around the park and create food and entertainment 
destinations 

 
Increase sponsorships? 

 Present sponsorship programs are basic and gives away to many assets back to 
sponsor creating a negative return to the fair 

 No mutual marketing opportunities with present sponsors. 
 Need sponsors that drive your gate and attendance 

 Need more creative sponsor packages 

 Signage and recognition are a thing of the past in sponsorships 

 Need some type of incentive for staff to want to increase sponsorships 
 
 
Decrease expenses? 

 Do an analysis on return on investment to actual expense  
 Entertainment costs are also high for your actual attendance.  Analyze your 

return on investment.  Might have to raise grandstand reserved seating price 
 Advertising, entertainment and equipment rental is over 50% of the fair expense.  

Needs more detailed analysis. 
 



 
Final conclusions: 
 
Some areas I did not comment on in my assessment were your agricultural program 
and non-fair rental rates.  Not actually witnessing your agricultural programming during 
your fair I feel I cannot comment accurately, but I do feel looking at your offered 
programs and competitions, that this area of your fair is strong. All fairs struggle with the 
urban public participating or observing the agricultural competitions and programs, but 
you offer a number of educational opportunities that are hands on or easily accessible. I 
have no suggested opportunities or improvements to this area. 
 
The number of your non-fair events are positive, but your revenues seem low.  Suggest 
again, an individual profit and loss analysis for each event.  Events not showing a profit 
need to be assessed as to whether they should remain at fair park.  Also, a complete 
analysis and comparison of your rental rates to other similar venues needs to be done. 
Buildings are always in need of repair and maintenance and you need to keep that in 
mind when setting future rental rates.  I do not feel you have a need to build a new 
multi-purpose building in the near future, because of costs and the ability to pay for it 
from rental revenue.  I believe the potential new business in the area is not enough to 
sustain a new building.  I would invest in continued upgrades to existing facilities. 
 
Presently your profit and loss financials do not leave you enough funds to continually 
address your maintenance and capital improvement needs, without using taxpayer 
monies. Reserves are important is our industry as you never know when Mother Nature 
can hand us a bad year.   
 
 I do not see the growth this fair and fair park should have had over the last five years.  
With the population base in the area this fair, in my mind, has the potential to increase 
its attendance by 50% over the next few years.  With the proper leadership and 
knowledge of the fair and event industry this can be accomplished. Staff seems excited 
to grow and make the fair and fair park successful, but I feel they do not see an 
opportunity to implement their ideas and creative thoughts.  Staff has to overlap into a 
number of different areas to accomplish everything needed to produce a fair.  This 
leaves less time to look to the future and make a plan. Your fair event looks good but 
revenues need to be increased and the fair needs to become a priority for your guests 
every year. You continually need to look to the future and be on top of new trends and 
attractions people want to see.  Also, continued education by management and staff on 
all of the issues facing our industry both positive and negative is a must.  I suggest more 
investment in management and staff attending industry conventions and seminars 
whenever possible.  Investment in education is returned ten-fold in the production of 
your fair. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Future opportunities to work with Fair Advantage: 
 

 Research and implement an electronic on-line ticketing system 
 Work with Fair Committee and Management to create a strategic plan 
 Produce detailed analysis on layout, expenses, rental rates and sponsorships 
 Advise and work with management and staff monthly to grow the Jefferson 

County Fair into the future 
 Project management on any project assigned by Jefferson County Fair 

management 
 Research and prepare a complete marketing plan 

 
Thank you for this opportunity and I look forward to our continued partnership. 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
 
Richard Frenette/CEO 
Fair Advantage 
rick@fair-advantage.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

mailto:rick@fair-advantage.com


  MARKIN CONSULTING  ■■■■  MAPLE GROVE, MINNESOTA    

  

120 Woodland Pond Park  ■  12072 87th Place N.  ■  Maple Grove, MN  55369  ■  Phone 763-493-3568  ■  Fax 763-463-9536 

 
July 15, 2006 
 
 
Fair Park Committee 
Jefferson County Fair Park 
503 North Jackson Avenue 
Jefferson, Wisconsin  53549 
 
Dear Fair Park Committee: 
 
Markin Consulting is pleased to submit this summary report of the estimated economic impacts 
associated with current and potential operations of the Jefferson County Fair Park.  This summary 
report recaps the work steps, analysis and results of the economic impact analysis conducted in 
conjunction with the development of a long-range plan for the Jefferson County Fair Park.   

BACKGROUND 
The operations of the Jefferson County Fair Park contribute significantly to the economic vitality 
of the Jefferson County area.  Economic impact analysis consists of identifying and quantifying 
economic activities that represent spending within a community or region from (1) the operation 
of a business or businesses within the community or region and (2) the expenditures in the 
community or region made by businesses and persons that reside outside of the area. 

Economic impacts are generally described as the amount of expenditures that occur in a defined 
geographic area, including subsequent re-spending of the initial expenditures.  These impacts are 
referred to as expenditure impacts.  A portion of the expenditure impacts is paid to local 
residents in the form of salaries and wages, referred to as earnings impacts.  Similarly, the 
amount of earnings paid from the expenditures represent jobs to local residents – the number of 
jobs referred to as employment impacts.   

Expenditure Impacts 
The expenditure impacts of an operation like the Fair Park facilities consists of two components - 
(1) revenues and expenditures of the Fair Park operations and (2) expenditures by promoters and 
participants of events and activities held at the facilities.  The expenditures of Fair Park 
operations consist of salaries and wages, purchases of goods and services, and capital additions.  
Salaries and wages include full and part time employees.  Purchases of goods and services 
include utilities, supplies, materials, personal services and other expenditures.  Capital additions 
include construction projects and the purchase of capital assets. 

Participant expenditures represent those expenditures made by persons residing outside of 
Jefferson County for lodging, food and beverage, retail purchases, transportation, entertainment 
and other expenditures.  Expenditures of participants living within the impact area are not 
included because those expenditures merely reflect a redistribution of expenditures within the 
impact area, and they do not represent incremental impacts. 

Similarly, expenditures of promoters of events held at the facilities consist of purchases of goods 
and services, lodging, food and beverage purchases, retail purchases, transportation and other 
expenditures.   

 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 2 

Induced expenditures, earnings and employment are quantified through an economic 
phenomenon known as the multiplier.  The multiplier concept, based on the input/output 
economic theory, recognizes that there is a continued flow of money within and outside of a 
given area.  Money is spent in successive rounds within a community, thus creating an economic 
impact in excess of the original direct expenditures. 

Markin Consulting uses the Regional Input-Output Modeling System (RIMS II)1 developed by 
the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) to estimate the total 
expenditure, earnings and employment impacts resulting from the initial impacts (direct 
expenditures).  RIMS II contains multipliers for all industries listed by the BEA's four-digit 
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) such as hotels and lodging places, eating and drinking 
establishments, retail trade, utilities, business services, amusements and household wages.  The 
RIMS II multipliers for Jefferson County that were used for this analysis are output, earnings and 
employment and are presented in Exhibit B. 

The output multiplier represents the total dollar change in output (total expenditures) that occurs 
for each additional dollar of output (direct expenditures).  The output multiplier includes the 
initial direct expenditure to which the multiplier is applied, except for the household multiplier 
(salaries and wages).  For example, an output multiplier of 1.50 for hotels and lodging places 
means that for each $1.00 spent for lodging, an additional $0.50 is spent by the lodging 
establishment and supporting industries (wages, goods and services, capital improvements).  The 
$1.00 is the direct expenditure, the $0.50 is the indirect expenditure and $1.50 is the total 
economic impact. 

Earnings Impacts 

A part of the initial expenditures and resulting indirect impacts result in the payment of salaries 
and wages to local residents.  As an example, out of the revenues received by Fair Park in 
operating its facilities it pays for labor costs in the form of salaries and wages, referred to as 
earnings.  In addition, as a result of the expenditures of operating the facilities, a portion of those 
expenditures result in earnings to persons employed by utility companies, insurance companies 
and other businesses. 

Similarly, a portion of the initial expenditures of non-local users and participants for lodging, 
meals and other are paid to workers in the hotel, restaurant, retail and other industries in the form 
of earnings.  RIMS II has an earnings multiplier that is applied to the initial impacts to estimate 
the amount of the initial and indirect impacts that is paid out in earnings to local residents. 

The earnings multiplier represents the estimated total (direct and indirect) salaries and wages that 
result from each additional dollar of direct expenditure.  Assuming an earnings multiplier of 
.6594 for lodging places, for every dollar spent by tourists for lodging, almost 66 cents is paid to 
regional households in earnings.  These earnings are paid to employees of the hotel (direct) and to 
employees of businesses and industries that support the lodging industry (indirect). 

                                                      
1 See Exhibit A for a narrative description of the RIMS II Modeling System. 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 3 

Employment Impacts 
Similar to the earnings impacts, the RIMS II model has specific multipliers that estimate the 
number of jobs supported for each $1 million of expenditures in any given industry.  In the case 
of Fair Park, in addition to the number of jobs estimated to operate its current and proposed 
facilities, there are jobs in the local community that are supported from the operating 
expenditures of Fair Park as well as a result of the initial expenditures of non-local users and 
participants.  These impacts are expressed in terms of the number of jobs supported. 

The employment multiplier represents the number of jobs that regional industries provide, both 
directly and indirectly, for each $1 million of output (direct expenditures) of a given industry.  
Continuing the hotel example, if the employment multiplier is 50.3, then for every $1 million 
dollars spent by patrons for lodging, 50.3 jobs are required - both at the lodging facility and at 
industries supporting the hotel such as the utility company, telephone company, laundries, 
delivery services, and others. 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 4 

Jefferson County Fair Park Impacts 
To understand the calculation of economic impacts related to the Jefferson County Fair Park, one 
needs to understand the general flow of money through any given economy.  Revenue generated 
by any operation is used to pay for its operating expenses.  Some of these operating expenditures 
involve purchasing goods and services from local businesses and employees, as well as from 
businesses located outside of the local economy. 

After the initial round of expenditures are made by a local operation for goods, services and 
personnel, a portion of those dollars is re-spent locally and another portion is made to businesses 
outside the local economy.  Payments for goods and services to businesses located outside of the 
local economy are referred to as leakage, representing an outflow of dollars from the local 
economy. 

The quantification of the subsequent re-spending of dollars in the local economy is done using an 
economic factor known as a multiplier.  Multipliers vary by industry, expenditure type and 
economy, due to the different make-ups of each economy and the components of each industry. 

In general, the more self-sufficient a particular economy is, because of the presence of diverse 
and inter-dependent businesses, the higher the multiplier (less leakage of dollars outside of the 
local economy). 

The graphic below illustrates the general flow of dollars through a given economy, including 
leakage of dollars outside the local economy. 

 

 

 
$$$

1st Round of 
Spending 

$$$ 
Leakage Out 

of Community 

$$$
Local 

Services 

$$$
Local 

Goods 

$$$ 
Local 

Wages/Jobs 

$$$ 
Leakage 

$$$ 
Services 

$$$
Goods 

$$$
Wages/Jobs 

$$$ 
Leakage 

$$$
Services 

$$$
Goods 

$$$
Wages/Jobs 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 5 

The BEA recommends using the “bill of goods” method to calculate the annual impacts of any 
operation, if both the initial impacts (revenues) and local expenditures made by those revenues 
are quantifiable. 

When using the “bill of goods” methodology to estimate the annual economic impact of the 
Jefferson County Fair Park, the local operating expenditures of the Fair and Fairgrounds are 
multiplied by appropriate RIMS II multipliers and the results (Induced Impacts) are added to the 
revenues (Initial Impacts) of the Fair and Fairgrounds.  When graphically illustrated, the “bill of 
goods” method looks like this: 

 

Graphical Presentation    Terminology 
 
 
 
      Initial Impacts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          Total Impacts 
 
 
 
      Induced Impacts 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
When only the initial impacts are quantifiable, such as expenditures by visitors for lodging, 
meals, retail purchase and the like, those initial impacts are applied to their appropriate industry 
multiplier – lodging, restaurants, etc. 

 

 

Local Operating 
Expenditures of 

JCFP 

Multipliers 

Re-Spending of 
Dollars in Local 

Community 

 
 

Revenues of 
JCFP 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 6 

METHODOLOGY 
This section describes the general methodologies used to develop estimates of expenditure, 
earnings, employment and fiscal impacts related to (1) current Fair Park operations and events, 
and (2) operations and events associated with the recommended facilities and potential new 
events contained in the Market Demand and Financial Feasibility Report, dated July 2006. 

Current Operations and Events 
The impacts related to the operations of the existing Fair Park facilities result from two sources: 

■ Existing Fair Park operating impacts 

■ Existing event impacts 

As noted earlier, the existing Fair Park operating impacts consist of expenditures made by Fair 
Park for salaries and wages, purchases of goods and services and capital expenditures.  Event 
impacts include the expenditures of event promoters and sponsors to stage their events at the Fair 
Park facilities and the expenditures of patrons, participants, delegates and exhibitors at those 
events for lodging, meals, retail purchases, transportation and others. 

To identify and quantify the operating impacts of the existing Fair Park facilities, the following 
work steps were performed.  The revenue and expenses statement for Fair Park’s 2005 calendar 
year was provided by Fair Park staff, representing the initial impacts.  Using the 205 financial 
results of the Fair Park operations, Fair Park staff adjusted out all non-cash expenditures such as 
depreciation and amortization, and added any capital expenditures.  For payroll related 
expenditures, Fair Park personnel estimated the amount of those expenditures paid to Jefferson 
County residents.  For the remaining non-payroll expenditures, Fair Park accounting personnel 
developed estimates of the portion of each expenditure account that was spent in Jefferson 
County.   

Annual Events Held at Fair Park 

Event Promoters 

To develop estimates of the direct expenditures of promoters/organizers of events and activities 
held at Fair Park, we conducted surveys of major users of the existing facilities to gather the 
following information – expenditures made in Jefferson County, by type, and the number of non-
local participants.  Exhibit E contains a listing of the event promoters who were included in the 
survey, along with those who responded.  We supplemented the limited number of responses 
from Fair Park event promoters with the results of promoter surveys of similar events that we 
conducted for other projects. 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 7 

Livestock, Animal and Horse Events 

To develop estimates of direct expenditures of participants of agricultural-related events held at 
the existing Fair Park facilities (livestock shows, small animal shows and horse shows), we 
conducted surveys of participants of the following events: 

! Badger Rabbit Show, March 2006 
! Badgerland ALSA Llama Show, April 2005 
! Paint Horse Show, June 2005 
! Peruvian Horse Show, July 2005 
! District 8 Holstein Show, June 2005 
! Badger Quarter Horse Show, August 2005 
! WI Buckskin Horse Shows, May, June & July 2005 

The results of the surveys were used to estimate the expenditures of non-local participants and 
patrons at all horse events held at the Fair Park facilities in 2005.  Markin Consulting used data 
complied from previous economic impact studies about the typical spending patterns (daily 
expenditures) of participants at horse shows and events to assess the reasonableness of the Fair 
Park horse event survey results. 

Conventions 
Two major conventions/conferences that are included in the economic impact analysis are the 
2005 Wisconsin Sheep & Wool Festival (an annually recurring event) and the 2006 Wisconsin 
State Holstein Convention (a non-recurring event).  The organizers of these events provided 
information regarding the number of exhibitors/delegates that attended these events.  Expenditure 
data compiled from other economic impact studies were used to develop estimates of direct 
expenditures of non-local participants/delegates for these events. 

Other Events 

Four other events/activities that were held in 2005 (recurring events) have significant economic 
impacts to the County – the Spring Car Show, the Fall Car Show, the WI Winnebago Camping 
Rally and Dog Flyball Competition.  The organizer of the WI Winnebago Camping Rally 
provided us with the number of parties that attended this event (based on the number of rigs or 
sites occupied).  Expenditure data for RV rallies from other economic impact studies were used to 
estimate the direct expenditures of this rally. 

The promoter of the Spring and Fall Car Shows provided us with the number of non-local 
exhibitors who participate in each event.  Expenditure data from similar consumer-oriented shows 
were used to develop estimates of the direct expenditures of the non-local exhibitors for these two 
car shows.  Previous economic impact and market studies provided estimates of attendance and 
expenditure patterns of on-local participants for the Dog Flyball Competition. 
 
A number of events held at the Fair Park attract out-of-county day visitors to Jefferson County, 
such as the Spring and Fall Car Shows, WI Sheep & Wool Festival, gun shows, swap meets and 
other events.  Event promoters and management of Fair Park provided estimates of the estimated 
number of out-of-county visitors to Jefferson County directly related to events held at Fair Park.   



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 8 

ESTIMATED ANNUAL IMPACTS OF FAIR PARK EXISTING OPERATIONS AND EVENTS 
 
Exhibits C - F present detailed analyses and calculations of the estimated economic impacts 
associated with the current operations and events of the Jefferson County Fair Park.  Based on the 
2005 financial and event records and the relevant RIMS II multipliers (see Exhibit B), the 
estimated annual economic impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park are as shown in the tables 
below. 

Initial Impacts Induced Impacts Total Impacts

JCFP Operations $616,000 $617,000 $1,233,000

Interim Event Impacts
Livestock/Animal Shows $745,000 $319,000 $1,064,000
Horse Shows 390,000 172,000 562,000
Other Interim Events 787,000 306,000 1,093,000

$1,922,000 $797,000 $2,719,000

All Activities $2,538,000 $1,414,000 $3,952,000

All dollar amounts rounded to nearest $1,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Activity from Operations and Events

 

The table below summarizes the estimated total expenditure impacts, the earnings impacts and the 
number of jobs supported by the impacts.  The earnings impacts represent that portion of the total 
impacts that are paid to local area employees in the form of salaries and wages.  Job Impacts 
represent the estimated number of jobs supported/created by the economic activities. 

Total Impacts Earnings Impacts Job Impacts

JCFP Operations $1,233,000 $298,000 9.9

Interim Event Impacts
Livestock/Animal Shows $1,064,000 $262,000 16.1
Horse Shows 562,000 136,000 8.7
Other Interim Events 1,093,000 246,000 12.7

$2,719,000 $644,000 37.5

All Activities $3,952,000 $942,000 47.4

All dollar amounts rounded to nearest $1,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Activity from Operations and Events

 

Due to the variability of events and activities in any given year and the margin of error of 
survey responses, the annual impacts are estimated to range between $3.8 million and $4.2 
million. 
 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 9 

ESTIMATED ANNUAL IMPACTS OF EXPANDED OPERATIONS AND EVENTS 
Below is a summary of the estimated impacts that would result from Fair Park attracting 
additional horse shows, livestock and animal shows and RV rallies, as presented on page 39 of 
the Market Demand and Financial Feasibility Report, dated July 2006.  Exhibits G – H present 
the detailed assumptions regarding spending patterns, attendance, days in the Jefferson area and 
number of events, as well as the calculations of the multiplier impacts. 

Event Amount Event Amount
Horse Shows RV Rallies

Intial Expenditures $901,000 Intial Expenditures $457,000
Induced Impacts 401,000 Induced Impacts 199,000
Total Annual Impacts $1,302,000 Total Annual Impacts $656,000

Earnings $318,000 Earnings $154,000

Jobs Supported 20 Jobs Supported 9

Livestock and Animal Shows Operations
Intial Expenditures $793,000 Intial Inputs $466,000
Induced Impacts 341,000 Induced Impacts 322,000
Total Annual Impacts $1,134,000 Total Annual Impacts $788,000

Earnings $280,000 Earnings $222,000

Jobs Supported 17 Jobs Supported 6

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Impacts of Potential Events

 

Below is the summary of the estimated annual economic impacts from operations and 
promoters/participants in the potential events and activities presenting in the Market Demand and 
Financial Feasibility Report, dated July 2006. 

Event Amount
Total Potential Events

Intial Expenditures $2,617,000
Induced Impacts $1,263,000
Total Annual Impacts $3,880,000

Earnings $974,000

Jobs Supported 52

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Impacts of Potential Events

 

The annual impacts associated with potential new events and expanded facilities are estimated 
to range between $3.6 million and $4.1 million. 
 



 
 
Fair Park Committee 
July 15, 2006 
Page 10 

Conditions and Limitations of the Report 
This report is to be used for planning and promotion of the Jefferson County Fair Park only.  It is 
not to be used for any other purpose.  This report may not be referred to or included in any 
prospectus, or as a part of any offering or representation made in connection with the sale of 
securities to the public. 

Although we believe that the information and assumptions set forth in this report constitute a 
reasonable basis for the estimates of impact, the achievement of any estimate may be affected by 
fluctuating economic conditions and the occurrence of other future events that cannot be 
anticipated.  Therefore, the actual results achieved from the estimates and such variations may be 
material. 

The terms of our engagement are that we have no responsibility to update this report or to revise 
the estimates because of events and transactions occurring subsequent to the date of this report. 

 
******************************************************* 

 
Markin Consulting has appreciated working with you on this very important project and in 
providing you with this report. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Rod Markin, President 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibits 

 
 
 



Exhibit A 

A - 1 

 

RIMS II: 
A Brief Description of Regional Multipliers from the 

Regional Input-Output Modeling System 
 

 
OVERVIEW 
 
Effective planning for public and private-sector projects and programs at the State and local levels 
requires a systematic analysis of the economic impacts of these projects and programs on affected 
regions. A systematic analysis of economic impacts, in turn, must account for the inter-industry 
relationships within a region because these relationships largely determine how the regional economy will 
respond to project and program changes. Thus, regional input-output (I-O) multipliers, which account for 
inter-industry relationships within regions, are useful tools for conducting regional economic impact 
analysis. 
 
In the mid-1970's, the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) developed a method for estimating regional I-
O multipliers known as RIMS (Regional Industrial Multiplier System), which was based on the work of 
Garnick and Drake./1/ In the mid-1980's, BEA completed an enhancement of RIMS, known as RIMS II 
(Regional Input-Output Modeling System), and published a handbook for RIMS II users./2/ In 1992, BEA 
published a second edition of the handbook, in which the multipliers were based on more recent data and 
improved methodology. Now, BEA is making available a third edition of the handbook, which provides 
more detail on the use of the multipliers and on the data sources and methods for estimating them. 
 
RIMS II is based on an accounting framework called an I-O table, which shows, for each industry, the 
industrial distribution of inputs purchased and the output sold. A typical I-O table in RIMS II is derived 
mainly from two data sources: (1) BEA's national I-O table, which shows the input and output structure of 
more than 500 U.S. industries, and (2) BEA's four-digit Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) county 
wage-and-salary data, which is used to adjust the national I-O table to show a region's industrial structure 
and trading patterns./3/ 
 
Using RIMS II, multipliers can be estimated for any region composed of one or more counties and for any 
industry in the national I-O table. The accessibility of the main data sources for RIMS II keeps the cost of 
estimating regional multipliers relatively low. Empirical tests show that estimates based on relatively 
expensive surveys and RIMS II-based estimates are similar in magnitude. Moreover, RIMS II easily can 
incorporate project-specific data supplied by users; such data can improve the accuracy of the multiplier 
estimates./4/ 
 



Exhibit A 

A - 2 

I-O multipliers from RIMS II can be used to estimate the impacts of project and program expenditures by 
industry on regional output (gross receipts or sales), earnings (the sum of wages and salaries, proprietors' 
income, and other labor income, less employer contributions to private pension and welfare funds), and 
employment (number of jobs). In the public sector, 
 
Federal, State, and local planners and analysts use RIMS II to estimate regional impacts. For example, the 
Department of Defense uses RIMS II to estimate the regional impacts of changes in defense expenditures; 
and the New York State Energy Office uses RIMS II to estimate the regional impacts of energy policies, 
ranging from the construction of facilities to energy conservation. Private-sector analysts, consultants, and 
economic development practitioners use RIMS II to estimate the regional impacts of a variety of projects, 
ranging from offshore drilling to the construction of transportation facilities. 
 
RIMS II METHODOLOGY 
 
RIMS II uses BEA's national I-O table, which shows the input and output structure for approximately 500 
industries. Since a particular region may not contain all the industries found at the national level, some 
direct input requirements cannot be supplied by that region's industries. Input requirements that are not 
produced in a study region are identified using BEA's four-digit SIC county wage-and-salary data. 
(Currently, data for 1995 are used.) 
 
The RIMS II method for estimating regional I-O multipliers can be viewed as a three-step process. In the 
first step, the producer portion of the national I-O table is made region-specific by using four-digit SIC 
location quotients (LQ's). The LQ's estimate the extent to which input requirements are supplied by firms 
within the region. RIMS II uses LQ's based on two types of data: BEA's personal income data, by place of 
residence, are used to calculate LQ's in the service industries; and BEA's wage-and-salary data, by place 
of work, are used to calculate LQ's in the nonservice industries. 
 
In the second step, the household row and the household column from the national I-O table are made 
region-specific. The household row coefficients, which are derived from the value-added row of the 
national I-O table, are adjusted to reflect regional earnings leakage resulting from individuals working in 
the region but residing outside the region. The household column coefficients, which are based on the 
personal consumption expenditure column of the national I-O table, are adjusted to account for regional 
consumption leakage stemming from personal taxes and savings. 
 
In the last step, the Leontief inversion approach is used to estimate multipliers. This inversion approach 
produces output, earnings, and employment multipliers, which can be used to trace the impacts of changes 
in final demand on directly and indirectly affected industries. 
 
ACCURACY OF RIMS II 
 
Empirical tests indicate that RIMS II yields multipliers that are not substantially different in magnitude 
from those generated by regional I-O models based on relatively expensive surveys. For example, a 
comparison of 224 industry-specific multipliers from survey-based tables for Texas, Washington, and 
West Virginia indicates that the RIMS II average multipliers overestimate the average multipliers from 
the survey-based tables by approximately 5 percent. For the majority of individual industry-specific 
multipliers, the difference between RIMS II and survey-based multipliers is less than 10 percent. In 
addition, RIMS II and survey multipliers show statistically similar distributions of affected industries. 
 



Exhibit A 

A - 3 

ADVANTAGES OF RIMS II 
 
There are numerous advantages to using RIMS II. First, the accessibility of the main data sources makes 
it possible to estimate regional multipliers without conducting relatively expensive surveys. Second, the 
level of industrial detail used in RIMS II helps avoid aggregation errors, which often occur when 
industries are combined. Third, RIMS II multipliers can be compared across areas because they are based 
on a consistent set of estimating procedures nationwide. Fourth, RIMS II multipliers are updated to reflect 
the most recent local-area wage-and-salary and personal income data. 
 
APPLICATIONS OF RIMS II 
 
RIMS II multipliers can be used in a wide variety of impact studies. For example, the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission has used RIMS II multipliers in environmental impact statements required for 
licensing nuclear electricity- generating facilities. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development has used RIMS II multipliers to estimate the impacts of various types of urban 
redevelopment expenditures. In addition, BEA has provided RIMS II multipliers to numerous individuals 
and groups outside the Federal Government. RIMS II multipliers have been used to estimate the regional 
economic and industrial impacts of the following: opening or closing military bases, hypothetical nuclear 
reactor accidents, tourist expenditures, new energy facilities, energy conservation, offshore drilling, 
opening or closing manufacturing plants, and new airport or port facilities. 
 
1. See Daniel H. Garnick, "Differential Regional Multiplier Models," Journal of Regional Science 10 
(February 1970): 35-47; and Ronald L. Drake, "A Short-Cut to Estimates of Regional Input-Output 
Multipliers," International Regional Science Review 1 (Fall 1976): 1-17. 
 
2. See U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Input-Output Modeling 
System (RIMS II): Estimation, Evaluation, and Application of a Disaggregated Regional Impact Model 
(Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1981). Available from the National Technical 
Information Service, 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield, VA 22161; order no. PB-82-168-865; price $26. 
 
3. See U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, The Detailed Input-Output 
Structure of the U.S. Economy, Volume II (Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office, 
November 1994); and U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, State Personal 
Income, 1929-93 (Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office, June 1995). 
 
4. See U.S. Department of Commerce, Regional Input-Output Modeling System (RIMS II), chapter 5. 
Also see Sharon M. Brucker, Steven E. Hastings, and William R. Latham III, "The Variation of Estimated 
Impacts from Five Regional Input-Output Models," International Regional Science Review 13 (1990): 
119-39. 
 
 



Exhibit B 

B - 1 

RIMS II MULTIPLIERS USED IN ANALYSIS 
 
Markin Consulting used the Regional Input-Output Modeling System (RIMS II) developed by the U.S. 
Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA to estimate the indirect expenditures, 
earnings and employment resulting from the direct expenditures.  RIMS II contains multipliers for all 
industries listed by the BEA’s four-digit Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) such as hotels and 
lodging places, eating and drinking establishments, retail trade, utilities, business services, amusements 
and household wages.  The RIMS II multipliers relevant to this analysis are output, earnings and 
employment.  The multipliers used in this analysis are shown in the table below. 
 

Output Earnings Employment

Multipliers Used for Operations
6 Utilities 1.2372 0.0163 3.2216
7 Construction 1.4557 0.2892 8.5153

H00000 Households 0.6738 0.1298 5.7984
4A0000 Retail Trade 1.3778 0.3046 15.1589
524100 Insurance agencies, brokers 1.2761 0.3055 8.6434
525000 Financial vehicles 1.2106 0.1554 4.7833
541800 Advertising and related services 1.3343 0.2931 9.1551
561100 Office administrative services 1.3965 0.3989 10.4342
561200 Facility support services 1.3423 0.3873 9.3501
711500 Independent artists and performers 1.3085 0.2603 8.4781
812900 Other personal services 1.2780 0.1295 6.4034

Multipliers Used for Interim Events and Activities
28 Retail Trade 1.3778 0.3046 15.1589
57 Accomodation 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769
58 Food services and drinking places 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626

H00000 Households 0.6738 0.1298 5.7984
Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce

Jefferson County Fair Park
RIMS II Multipliers Used in Economic Impact Analysis

RIMS II
Category # Industry

Multipliers

 



Exhibit C 

C - 1 

ECONOMIC IMPACT ANALYSIS – EXISTING OPERATIONS AND EVENTS 
 
For purposes of this analysis, Markin Consulting quantified the economic impacts associated with the 
Jefferson County Fair Park by (1) annual operations of the JCFP and (3) non-Fair impacts. 
 
ESTIMATED IMPACTS RESULTING FROM ANNUAL OPERATIONS 
 
Exhibit D presents (1) the calendar year 2005 expenditures of the Jefferson County Fair Park, (2) the 
portion of those expenditures that management estimates are spent locally, (3) the applicable multipliers 
for each expenditure type, (4) the estimated multiplier impacts for each expenditure type, (5) the initial 
impacts (revenues, payroll and number of jobs) of the Jefferson County Fair Park operation, and (6) the 
total estimated impacts associated with the current operation of the Jefferson County Fair Park. 

The table below presents the estimated annual economic impacts associated with the operation of the 
Jefferson County Fair Park, including the annual Jefferson County Fair. 

Expenditure Earnings Employment
Impact Type Impacts Impacts Impacts

Initial impacts $616,000 $178,000 4
Induced impacts 617,000 120,000 4
Total impacts $1,233,000 $298,000 8

All dollar amounts rounded to nearest $1,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Impacts of JCFP Operations

 
 



Exhibit C 

C - 2 

ESTIMATED IMPACTS FROM EXISTING INTERIM EVENTS 

For purposes of presentation, the interim events were classified in three categories – livestock and animal 
shows, horse shows and other events. 

Livestock and Animal Shows 

Below is a summary of the estimated annual impacts associated with new dollars brought to Jefferson 
County by promoters and participants of livestock and animal shows.  The events included in these 
estimates are the WI State Holstein Convention, WI Sheep & Wool Festival, Badger Rabbit Show, WI 
Spring Livestock Preview and the District 8 Holstein Show. 

Event Amount
Livestock Shows and Event

Intial Expenditures $745,000
Induced Impacts 315,000
Total Annual Impacts $1,060,000

Earnings $260,000

Jobs Supported 16

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Impacts of Livestock and Animal Shows

 

Horse Shows 

Fifteen horse shows held in 2005 were included the economic impact analysis: 

Date Event Date Event
May July

7th-8th Buckskin Horse Show 2nd-3rd Pinto Horse Show
14th-15th Paint Horse Show 23rd-24th Buckskin Horse Show
21st-22nd Pinto Horse Show 29th-31st Peruvian Horse Show

June August
4th-5th Paint Horse Show 5th-7th Palomino Horse Show

10th-12th Palomino Horse Show 13 Pinto Horse Show
18th-19th Morgan Horse Show 13 Wisconsin Walking Horse Show
25th-26th Buckskin Horse Show 19th-21st Quarter Horse Show

27th-28th Morab Open Show

Jefferson County Fair Park
2005 Open Horse Shows

 



Exhibit C 

C - 3 

Below is a summary of the estimated annual impacts associated with horse show promoter and participant 
spending in Jefferson County. 

Event Amount
Horse Shows

Intial Expenditures $390,000
Induced Impacts 170,000
Total Annual Impacts $560,000

Earnings $136,000

Jobs Supported 9

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Impacts of Horse Shows

 
 

Other Interim Events 

The Spring and Fall Car Shows, Dog Flyball Competition and the WI Winnebago Camping Rally were 
the other interim events held in 2005 that had any significant economic impact in Jefferson County.  
Below is a summary of the estimated impacts associated with those events. 

Event Amount
Other Interim Events

Intial Expenditures $212,000
Induced Impacts 87,000
Total Annual Impacts $299,000

Earnings $71,000

Jobs Supported 4

Jefferson County Fair Park
Estimated Annual Economic Impacts of Other Events

 
 



Exhibit D 

D - 1 

 

 
Jefferson County Fair Park
2005 Expenses Estimated

Amount
Total Spent Locally Output Earnings Employment Output Earnings Employment

Administrative Expenses $2,451.63 2,451.63 1.3965 0.3989 10.4342 $3,424 $978 0.0
Full Time Employees 139,033.00 139,033.00 0.6738 0.1298 5.7984 93,680 18,046 0.8
Seasonal/Part-Time Employees 38,595.00 38,595.00 0.6738 0.1298 5.7984 26,005 5,010 0.2
Benefits 96,350.00 96,350.00 1.2106 0.1554 4.7833 116,641 14,973 0.5
Superintendents, Gate, Security & Assistants 17,285.25 15,185.00 1.2780 0.1295 6.4034 19,406 1,966 0.1
Judges 4,640.00 1,050.00 0.0674 0.1298 5.7984 71 136 0.0
Premiums 17,713.00 17,700.00 0.0674 0.1298 5.7984 1,193 2,297 0.1
Supplies, Ribbons, Trophies 11,033.84 9,500.00 1.3778 0.3046 15.1589 13,089 2,894 0.1
Soda 6,999.64 2,700.00 1.3778 0.3046 15.1589 3,720 822 0.0
Shavings 10,345.65 0.00 1.3778 0.3046 15.1589 0 0 0.0
Printing 612.32 612.32 1.3343 0.2931 9.1551 817 179 0.0
Advertising 85,650.19 68,000.00 1.3343 0.2931 9.1551 90,732 19,931 0.6
Association Dues & Memberships 657.00 180.00 1.3965 0.3989 10.4342 251 72 0.0
Insurance Policies 9,954.38 2,200.00 1.2761 0.3055 8.6434 2,807 672 0.0
Utilities & MIS 64,817.22 58,000.00 1.2372 0.1625 3.2216 71,758 9,425 0.2
Rental of Equipment 23,479.47 0.00 1.1802 0.0966 2.8951 0 0 0.0
Special Acts, Features, Contests 172,329.24 7,500.00 1.3085 0.2603 8.4781 9,814 1,952 0.1
Maintenance: Bldg & Grounds, Equip., Vehicle 92,360.33 68,000.00 1.3423 0.3873 9.3501 91,276 26,336 0.6
Capital Expansion 86,126.74 50,000.00 1.4557 0.2892 8.5153 72,785 14,460 0.4

$880,433.90 577,056.95 617,471 120,151 3.9
Inputs 615,611 177,628 4.0
Total impacts $1,233,082 $297,779 7.9

Multiplier Results

 



Exhibit E 

E - 1 

Survey Survey
Date Event Sent Returned

February
11th-13th Gun Show (06) X

Feb 20-24 Holstein Convention & Show (06) X X
March

12th-13th Badger Rabbit Show (06) X X
20 Tri County Ham Radio Fest (06) X

April
5 Taste of Home (06) X X
9 Fort Kennel Club Fun Match (06) X

23rd-24th Spring Car Show & Swap Meet X X
30th-May 1 ALSA Llama & Alpaca Show X X

May
7th-8th Buckskin Horse Show X

14th-15th Paint Horse Show X
21st-22nd Pinto Horse Show X

June
4th-5th Paint Horse Show X

10th-12th Palomino Horse Show X
14th-16th District 8 Holstein Show X X
18th-19th Morgan Horse Show X
25th-26th Buckskin Horse Show X

July
2nd-3rd Pinto Horse Show X

23rd-24th Buckskin Horse Show X
29th-31st Peruvian Horse Show X
August
5th-7th Palomino Horse Show X

13 Pinto Horse Show X
13 Wisconsin Walking Horse Show X

19th-21st Quarter Horse Show X X
27th-28th Morab Open Show X
September

2nd-4th Dog Flyball Competition X
9th-11th Wisconsin Sheep & Wool Festival X X
15th-18th WI Winnebago Campers Rally X X
24th-25th Fall Car Show & Swap Meet X X
October
1st-2nd Rock & Gem Show X

Promoters were mailed surveys in March 2006.  Those not returning a survey were
contacted in May and June and remailed or e-mailed another survey to complete
and return.  Many promoters said they would complete the form but did not.

Jefferson County Fair Park
Listing of Event Promoters Sent and Received Surveys

 



Exhibit F 

F - 1 

Livestock and
Expenditures: Animal Shows Output Earnings Employment Output Earnings Employment

57   Lodging $305,400 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $431,600 $111,700 6.7
58   Meals 117,300 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 183,700 46,300 3.8
28   Transportation 70,100 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 96,600 21,300 1.1
56   Entertainment 23,300 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 34,500 10,300 0.7
28   Retail 109,500 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 150,800 33,200 1.6
28   Materials/Supplies 9,700 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 13,400 2,900 0.1
28   Other 55,100 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 75,900 16,700 0.8

Total $690,400 $986,500 $242,400 14.9

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

Livestock and Animal Shows
Multiplier ResultsRIMS II 

Mutiplier #

 
 

 

 

 

All Horse Shows Output Earnings Employment Output Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $81,500 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $115,200 $29,800 1.8
58   Meals 102,300 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 160,200 40,400 3.3
28   Transportation 83,100 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 114,500 25,200 1.2
56   Entertainment 9,600 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 14,200 4,200 0.3
28   Retail 37,200 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 51,200 11,300 0.6
28   Materials/Supplies 21,800 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 30,000 6,600 0.3
28   Other 4,100 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 5,600 1,200 0.1

Total $339,600 $490,900 $118,700 7.6

2005 Horse Shows

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

Multiplier ResultsRIMS II 
Mutiplier #

 



Exhibit F 

F - 2 

 

Description Initial Impacts Output Earnings Jobs Expenditures Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $49,700 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $70,241 $18,180 1.1
58   Meals 33,800 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 52,944 13,354 1.1
28   Transportation 33,200 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 45,736 10,080 0.5
56   Entertainment 6,000 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 8,882 2,654 0.2

541800   Advertising 20,000 1.3343 0.2931 9.1551 26,686 5,862 0.2
28   Retail 36,100 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 49,731 10,960 0.5
28   Materials/Supplies 29,500 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 40,639 8,956 0.4
28   Other 3,300 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 4,546 1,002 0.0

Total $211,600 $299,407 $71,048 4.1

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

Non-Local, Non-Ag Related Interim Event Exhibitors and Event Promoters
RIMS II 

Mutiplier #
Multiplier Results

 



Exhibit G 

G - 1 

State Regional Total
Number of Events 5 3
Number of Participants 200 400
Number of Days 3.0 5.0

Estimated Spending per party, per day
  Lodging $30.80 $30.80
  Meals 28.49 28.49
  Transportation 22.54 22.54
  Entertainment 2.63 2.63
  Retail 9.30 9.30
  Materials/Supplies 5.61 5.61
  Other 0.63 0.63

$99.99 $99.99

Estimated Expenditures
  Lodging $92,000 $185,000 $277,000
  Meals 85,000 171,000 256,000
  Transportation 68,000 135,000 203,000
  Entertainment 8,000 16,000 24,000
  Retail 28,000 56,000 84,000
  Materials/Supplies 17,000 34,000 51,000
  Other 2,000 4,000 6,000
Total $300,000 $601,000 $901,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Potential Direct Spending of Participants of Potential Horse Shows

 



Exhibit G 

G - 2 

Llama Large An. Dog Flyball Rabbit Dog Cat Bird Total
Number of Events 1 1 1 2 2 1 1
Number of Participants 200 300 300 300 300 200 200
Number of Days 3.0 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5

Estimated Spending per party, per day
  Lodging $69.64 $41.97 $87.00 $41.97 $87.00 $41.97 $41.97
  Meals 24.38 16.07 30.00 16.07 30.00 16.07 16.07
  Transportation 22.76 18.34 27.50 18.34 27.50 18.34 18.34
  Entertainment 0.42 3.41 5.50 3.41 5.50 3.41 3.41
  Retail 17.16 9.71 11.00 9.71 11.00 9.71 9.71
  Materials/Supplies 8.21 7.93 4.75 7.93 4.75 7.93 7.93
  Other 11.64 1.92 0.70 1.92 0.70 1.92 1.92

$154.21 $99.35 $166.45 $99.35 $166.45 $99.35 $99.35

Estimated Expenditures
  Lodging $42,000 $31,000 $65,000 $63,000 $131,000 $21,000 $21,000 $374,000
  Meals 15,000 12,000 23,000 24,000 45,000 8,000 8,000 135,000
  Transportation 14,000 14,000 21,000 28,000 41,000 9,000 9,000 136,000
  Entertainment 0 3,000 4,000 5,000 8,000 2,000 2,000 24,000
  Retail 10,000 7,000 8,000 15,000 17,000 5,000 5,000 67,000
  Materials/Supplies 5,000 6,000 4,000 12,000 7,000 4,000 4,000 42,000
  Other 7,000 1,000 1,000 3,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 15,000
Total $93,000 $74,000 $126,000 $150,000 $250,000 $50,000 $50,000 $793,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Potential Direct Spending of Participants of Potential Livestock and Animal Shows



Exhibit G 

G - 3 

State Regional National Total
Number of Events 3 3 1
Number of Participants 125 350 500
Number of Days 2.0 4.0 5.0

Estimated Spending per party, per day
  Lodging $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
  Meals 16.83 16.83 16.83
  Transportation 13.49 13.49 13.49
  Entertainment 3.84 3.84 3.84
  Retail 19.40 19.40 19.40
  Materials/Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Other 7.45 7.45 7.45

$61.02 $61.02 $61.02

Estimated Expenditures
  Lodging $0 $0 $0 $0
  Meals 13,000 71,000 42,000 126,000
  Transportation 10,000 57,000 34,000 101,000
  Entertainment 3,000 16,000 10,000 29,000
  Retail 15,000 81,000 49,000 145,000
  Materials/Supplies 0 0 0 0
  Other 6,000 31,000 19,000 56,000
Total $47,000 $256,000 $154,000 $457,000

Jefferson County Fair Park
Potential Direct Spending of Participants of Potential RV Rallies

 



Exhibit H 

H - 1 

Description Initial Impacts Output Earnings Jobs Expenditures Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $277,000 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $391,484 $101,327 6.1
58   Meals 256,000 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 400,998 101,146 8.3
28   Transportation 203,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 279,653 61,631 3.1
56   Entertainment 24,000 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 35,530 10,615 0.7
28   Retail 84,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 115,718 25,502 1.3
28   Materials/Supplies 51,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 70,258 15,484 0.8
28   Other 6,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 8,266 1,822 0.1

Total $901,000 $1,301,907 $317,526 20.3

Description Initial Impacts Output Earnings Jobs Expenditures Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $374,000 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $528,574 $136,809 8.2
58   Meals 135,000 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 211,464 53,339 4.4
28   Transportation 136,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 187,354 41,290 2.0
56   Entertainment 24,000 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 35,530 10,615 0.7
28   Retail 67,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 92,299 20,341 1.0
28   Materials/Supplies 42,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 57,859 12,751 0.6
28   Other 15,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 20,664 4,554 0.2

Total $793,000 $1,133,744 $279,699 17.2

Description Initial Impacts Output Earnings Jobs Expenditures Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $0 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $0 $0 0.0
58   Meals 126,000 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 197,366 49,783 4.1
28   Transportation 101,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 139,138 30,664 1.5
56   Entertainment 29,000 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 42,932 12,827 0.8
28   Retail 145,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 199,752 44,022 2.2
28   Materials/Supplies 0 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 0 0 0.0
28   Other 56,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 77,146 17,002 0.8

Total $457,000 $656,333 $154,297 9.5

Description Initial Impacts Output Earnings Jobs Expenditures Earnings Employment
57   Lodging $651,000 1.4133 0.3658 21.9769 $920,058 $238,136 14.3
58   Meals 517,000 1.5664 0.3951 32.5626 809,829 204,267 16.8
28   Transportation 440,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 606,144 133,584 6.6
56   Entertainment 77,000 1.4804 0.4423 28.8421 113,991 34,057 2.2
28   Retail 296,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 407,770 89,866 4.4
28   Materials/Supplies 93,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 128,117 28,235 1.4
28   Other 77,000 1.3776 0.3036 15.0320 106,075 23,377 1.2

Total $2,151,000 $3,091,984 $751,521 47.0

Total Potential Events
RIMS II 
Mutiplier 

Multiplier Results

Non-Local, Livestock and Animal Interim Event Participants

RIMS II 
Mutiplier 

Multiplier Results

Jefferson County Fair Park

RIMS II 
Mutiplier 

Multiplier Results

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

Non-Local, Horse Show Participants

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

RIMS II 
Mutiplier 

Multiplier Results

Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park
RV Rally Participants

Jefferson County Fair Park
Expenditures and Multiplier Impacts of the Jefferson County Fair Park

 























































Jefferson County Fair Park Staff Retreat January 13, 2017 
Kathy Steindorf, facilitating 
 
We started by looking at the EXISTING MISSION STATEMENT:  “Jefferson County Fair Park provides a county owned 
facility for all citizens where young and old can gather to display their talents, accomplishments and celebrate their 
cultures; thereby promoting education, entertainment and economic growth in Jefferson County” and its accompanying 
values.   
There was discussion as to if the Mission Statement was meant to be Fair Specific, or Year Round.  Consensus was that 
it is was meant to serve the Fair Park year round, question was then raised if we needed to do one for each, again 
consensus was that one would suffice.  Further discussion was held regarding the importance of ownership and 
responsibility of/for a Mission Statement.  There was discussion around economic benefits vs event activity, as regards 
community and non-profit events hosted at the Fair Park, it is hoped the Fair Park Board will have input during the 
Strategic planning meeting.  We looked at the Jefferson County Government Mission Statement and its accompanying 
values and discussed the pros and cons of modeling the Fair Park after it.  It was determined that making necessary 
adjustments to the current Fair Park version would be more efficient than attempting to rework everything to model County 
Government. 

MISSION STATEMENT VALUES (REVISION suggestions after review of current County mission statement and 
values, and discussion by staff for presentation to Fair Board) 

 The Jefferson County Fair Park reflects and honors the growth of agriculture and maintains the 
community flavor evident throughout Jefferson County. 

 The Jefferson County Fair Park is a recognized and respected facility that plays an important role as a 
year round tourism generator benefiting businesses and citizens of Jefferson County. 

 The Jefferson County Fair Park is county owned and operated with the resolve to demonstrate pride in 
our facility by being available for a wide variety of events. 

 The Jefferson County Fair Park contributes to community and youth education by showcasing the 
accomplishments and the identity of our community through the county fair. 

 
Discussion of Strategic Planning meeting held with Victoria Pratt, Jefferson County Economic Development Director.  This 
meeting was not seen as Strategic Planning, but rather training on how to do Strategic Planning.  The primary thing the 
staff felt necessary while discussing how to proceed with developing a Strategic Plan was the need to set 4 – 5 
Measurable attainable goals:   in discussion to set these a review of previous annual reports to the County Board was 
done.   
 

1. 2013 report shows 1st goal was “Increase revenues through corporate partnerships and additional revenue 
streams.”; 2015 report shows 1st goal was the same; assumption that 2014 1st goal was also the same; 2016 
report shows 1st goal was “Increase revenues and find additional revenue streams.”  Discussion regarding 
differences between “marketing partnerships” ($10,000 or more), and “sponsors” (less than $10,000), and those 
who advertise only around Fair Week.  There was not a clear consensus as to whether a document exists that 
clearly breaks this out so that all staff are on the same page.  There was some question as to which companies 
currently considered “Marketing Partners” have a signed current contract and which are up for review and 
discussion.  It was made clear that no contracts have been signed since the annual report was given at the 
August County Board Meeting.  Having a calendar available for all staff showing this information along with 
information on what potential “partners” or “sponsors” are being communicated with and what the status of said 
communication is could be helpful for both efficiency and team moral. 

3-5 YEAR Goal:  Increase Partnership/Sponsorship by 5% first year, 15% 2nd year, to reach 30% in 3rd year.  To finalize 
goal it must be determined if these percentages are to be measured in dollar amounts, number of contracts, or a 
combination.  Also to be determined is what categories and definition of same are to be measured (Partnership, 
Sponsorship, Advertiser were categories discussed) 
ACTION ITEM:  Create accessible calendar for all staff to notate so that all can see status of contracts (could work for 
other items also) 
 

2. 2013 report shows 2nd goal was “Increase County Fair revenues through increased gate, concert and beer ticket 
sales, sponsorships and vendor partnerships.”; 2015 report shows 2nd goal was the same; assumption that 2014 
2nd goal was also the same; 2016 report shows 2nd goal was “Continue to expand the Fair Park to meet the needs 
and demands of our current and future clients.”, and this goal had been removed.    Discussion revealed that staff 
feels this is still a pertinent goal and that we do track various ways that gate is driven.  It was also discussed that 
concert ticket and beer sales are measurable numbers, and we do track them.  Staff discussed developing 
additional measurements for gate and using that to develop ways to increase numbers by reaching new 
demographics.  Additional discussion about requiring ticket from each person entering gate regardless of status 
(employee, vendor, competitor, superintendent, County board, etc.) this would result in more measurability and 
ability for gate personnel to monitor/restrict entry, but also added expense of additional tickets or wristbands.  
Sponsorships and vendor partnerships are addressed under item 1. 



3-5 YEAR Goal:  We did not set a goal for this category as we need to be comfortable that measurement is accurate, 
however we discussed that following the percentages used for Item 1 could work. 
ACTION ITEM:  Come up with and implement additional ways to measure (clarify) attendance and who attendees are/ 
where attendees come from. 
 

3. 2013 report shows 3rd goal was “Continue to expand the Fair park to meet the needs and demands of our current 
and future clients”; 2015 report shows 3rd goal was the same; assumption that 2014 3rd goal was also the same; 
2016 report has 4 goals instead of the 6 listed for the prior years, and this goal is listed as 2nd goal for 2016.  
Discussion showed we are awaiting completion of Strategic Plan and possibly Feasibility study (awaiting RFP) 
before moving forward with this goal.   

3-5 YEAR Goal:  We did not set a goal for this category as Strategic Plan and Feasibility study are not complete. 
ACTION ITEM:  Complete Strategic Plan and determine if Feasibility Study is necessary. 
 

4. 2013 report shows 4th goal was “Develop efficiencies in job functions, controlling expenses and maximizing 
revenues”; 2015 report shows 4th goal was the same; assumption that 2014 4th goal was also the same; 2016 
report has 4 goals instead of 6, and this goal is listed as 3rd goal for 2016.  Discussion reveals that Fair Park staff 
feels very little of this goal is under their control other than that they all daily try to control expenses.   

3-5 YEAR Goal:  We did not set a goal for this category as we need to clarify county mandates and budget to determine 
what is / is not within control of Fair Park Staff. 
ACTION ITEM:  Get clarification on mandates regarding employee pay, status, overtime, on call, etc., and if any 
additional budget items are controlled by mandate.  After getting clarification review budget and set goals. 
 

5. 2013 report shows 5th goal was “Continue to seek out additional quality events to host at the Fair Park”; 2015 
report shows 5th goal was the same; assumption that 2014 5th goal was also the same; 2016 report has 4 goals 
instead of 6, and this goal is listed as 4th goal for 2016. Discussion shows that we have booked 18 horse shows, 2 
car shows, 1 sheep and wool festival, Dairy Breakfast, Spring Preview, Lama Show, along with camping groups 
on weekends.  There are educational events, along with meetings held on the grounds during the week, and 
storage space for rent 

3-5 YEAR Goal:  Increase usage of Fair Park Facilities by 25% first year, 75% second year, and 100% third year.  Currently 
5 weekends per year have full usage, 1 is Fair, 2 are Car Show, 1 is Sheep & Wool, and 1 is Gemutlichkeit.  This goal takes 
us from 5 full usage weekends to 10.  
ACTION ITEM:  Clarify usage definitions, is it space, dollars (in which case how do we count non-paying), or some other 
measurement.  Promote Fair Park interior facility options, grandstand, and camping along with show facilities. 
 

6. 2013 report shows 6th goal was “Develop consistent rental policies and fee structures”; 2015 report shows 6th goal 
was the same; assumption that 2014 6th goal was also the same; 2016 report has only 4 goals and this goal is not 
listed.  Staff advised that this goal has been attained and that there are distinct and specific policies on this.  
Contracts are completed and on file. 

During discussion of the above for goal setting, great conversation and discussion was had.  To further thought and 
reinforce ownership, responsibility and desire to attain the goals set and tie them to the Mission Statement and its Values 
we pulled a list of words from them and asked each participant to give their 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and then 4th priority.  It was a great 
pleasure to see the diversity of passion among the staff, and a strong indicator that staff is emotionally invested in the 
growth and improvement of the Fair Park. 



MARCH 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

FAIR PARK

REVENUES
12101 411100 General Property Taxes                                                       (71,430.00)$    (5,952.50)$    -$              (65,477.50)$    8.30%
12101 457010 Sponsor Revenue                                                              (50,000.00)$    -$              -$              (50,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 457025 Horse Show Fees                                                              (23,000.00)$    (462.50)$       -$              (22,537.50)$    2.00%
12101 457026 Shaving Sales                                                                (34,000.00)$    -$              -$              (34,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 474169 Fair Billed                                                                  (4,000.00)$      -$              -$              (4,000.00)$      0.00%
12101 482012 Building Rental                                                              (176,000.00)$  (2,284.36)$    -$              (173,715.64)$  1.30%
12101 482013 Stall Rental                                                                 (83,000.00)$    -$              -$              (83,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 482014 Winter Storage Rental                                                        (45,000.00)$    -$              -$              (45,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 482015 Space-Food Vendor                                                            (18,000.00)$    (136.35)$       -$              (17,863.65)$    0.80%
12101 482016 Space-Beverage Vendor                                                        (17,000.00)$    (163.65)$       -$              (16,836.35)$    1.00%
12101 482017 Space-Other Vendor                                                           (5,000.00)$      (1,133.65)$    -$              (3,866.35)$      22.70%
12101 482021 Camping Fee Other                                                            (52,000.00)$    (484.01)$       -$              (51,515.99)$    0.90%
12101 482100 Prior Year Rent Income                                                       -$                (300.00)$       -$              300.00$          0.00%
12101 486001 Vending Commission                                                           (1,000.00)$      (35.87)$         -$              (964.13)$         3.60%

EXPENDITURES
12101 511110 Salary-Permanent Regular                                                     106,413.00$   4,885.21$     -$              101,527.79$   4.60%
12101 511210 Wages-Regular                                                                126,295.00$   8,781.26$     -$              117,513.74$   7.00%
12101 511220 Wages-Overtime                                                               145.00$          -$              -$              145.00$          0.00%
12101 511240 Wages-Temporary                                                              15,484.00$     438.80$        -$              15,045.20$     2.80%
12101 511310 Wages-Sick Leave                                                             -$                1,656.16$     -$              (1,656.16)$      0.00%
12101 511330 Wages-Longevity Pay                                                          285.00$          -$              -$              285.00$          0.00%
12101 511340 Wages-Holiday Pay                                                            -$                534.71$        -$              (534.71)$         0.00%
12101 511350 Wages-Miscellaneous(Comp)                                                    -$                13.16$          -$              (13.16)$           0.00%
12101 512141 Social Security                                                              18,864.00$     1,228.97$     -$              17,635.03$     6.50%
12101 512142 Retirement (Employer)                                                        13,241.00$     884.78$        -$              12,356.22$     6.70%
12101 512144 Health Insurance                                                             31,767.00$     1,849.72$     -$              29,917.28$     5.80%
12101 512145 Life Insurance                                                               73.00$            2.67$            -$              70.33$            3.70%
12101 512148 Unemployment Compensation                                                    -$                920.76$        -$              (920.76)$         0.00%
12101 512150 FSA Contribution                                                             450.00$          -$              -$              450.00$          0.00%
12101 512173 Dental Insurance                                                             3,589.00$       62.53$          -$              3,526.47$       1.70%
12101 521219 Other Professional Serv                                                      600.00$          -$              -$              600.00$          0.00%
12101 521297 Stall Cleaning                                                               4,500.00$       -$              -$              4,500.00$       0.00%
12101 529170 Grounds Keeping Charges                                                      24,323.00$     1,143.76$     -$              23,179.24$     4.70%
12101 531301 Office Equipment                                                             500.00$          -$              -$              500.00$          0.00%
12101 531303 Computer Equipmt & Software                                                  2,000.00$       -$              -$              2,000.00$       0.00%
12101 531311 Postage & Box Rent                                                           200.00$          3.00$            -$              197.00$          1.50%
12101 531312 Office Supplies                                                              1,600.00$       64.87$          -$              1,535.13$       4.10%
12101 531313 Printing & Duplicating                                                       1,400.00$       69.06$          -$              1,330.94$       4.90%
12101 531314 Small Items Of Equipment                                                     4,000.00$       79.99$          -$              3,920.01$       2.00%
12101 531320 Safety Supplies                                                              750.00$          35.51$          -$              714.49$          4.70%
12101 531322 Subscriptions                                                                200.00$          -$              -$              200.00$          0.00%
12101 531324 Membership Dues                                                              1,300.00$       -$              -$              1,300.00$       0.00%
12101 531326 Advertising                                                                  4,500.00$       45.34$          -$              4,454.66$       1.00%
12101 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     1,500.00$       -$              -$              1,500.00$       0.00%
12101 531351 Gas/Diesel                                                                   6,000.00$       790.31$        -$              5,209.69$       13.20%
12101 531367 Wood Shavings                                                                22,000.00$     -$              -$              22,000.00$     0.00%
12101 532325 Registration                                                                 1,200.00$       298.00$        -$              902.00$          24.80%
12101 532332 Mileage                                                                      200.00$          -$              -$              200.00$          0.00%
12101 532334 Commercial Travel                                                            1,500.00$       -$              -$              1,500.00$       0.00%
12101 532335 Meals                                                                        850.00$          -$              -$              850.00$          0.00%
12101 532336 Lodging                                                                      3,500.00$       -$              -$              3,500.00$       0.00%
12101 532339 Other Travel & Tolls                                                         30.00$            -$              -$              30.00$            0.00%
12101 533221 Water                                                                        10,000.00$     621.97$        -$              9,378.03$       6.20%



MARCH 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

12101 533222 Electric                                                                     40,000.00$     2,065.69$     -$              37,934.31$     5.20%
12101 533223 Sewer                                                                        8,100.00$       524.15$        -$              7,575.85$       6.50%
12101 533224 Natural Gas                                                                  5,200.00$       721.49$        -$              4,478.51$       13.90%
12101 533225 Telephone & Fax                                                              2,000.00$       182.54$        -$              1,817.46$       9.10%
12101 533235 Storm Water Utility                                                          17,000.00$     1,424.52$     -$              15,575.48$     8.40%
12101 533236 Wireless Internet                                                            360.00$          40.04$          -$              319.96$          11.10%
12101 535232 Graveling                                                                    3,500.00$       -$              -$              3,500.00$       0.00%
12101 535242 Maintain Machinery & Equip                                                   6,000.00$       111.51$        -$              5,888.49$       1.90%
12101 535245 Grounds Improvements                                                         10,000.00$     480.69$        -$              9,519.31$       4.80%
12101 535247 Building Repair & Maint                                                      18,000.00$     1,241.78$     -$              16,758.22$     6.90%
12101 535297 Refuse Collection                                                            9,000.00$       729.78$        -$              8,270.22$       8.10%
12101 535344 Household & Janitorial Supp                                                  7,000.00$       -$              -$              7,000.00$       0.00%
12101 535347 Beverage Purchases                                                           10,000.00$     1,208.18$     -$              8,791.82$       12.10%
12101 535349 Other Supplies                                                               -$                284.44$        -$              (284.44)$         0.00%
12101 535352 Vehicle Parts & Repairs                                                      3,000.00$       98.64$          -$              2,901.36$       3.30%
12101 535355 Plumbing & Electrical                                                        7,000.00$       175.97$        1,750.00$     5,074.03$       27.50%
12101 536533 Equipment Rent & Lease                                                       1,000.00$       -$              -$              1,000.00$       0.00%
12101 571004 IP Telephony Allocation                                                      869.00$          72.42$          -$              796.58$          8.30%
12101 571005 Duplicating Allocation                                                       821.00$          68.42$          -$              752.58$          8.30%
12101 571009 MIS PC Group Allocation                                                      7,900.00$       658.33$        -$              7,241.67$       8.30%
12101 571010 MIS Systems Grp Alloc(ISIS)                                                  4,236.00$       353.00$        -$              3,883.00$       8.30%
12101 591519 Other Insurance                                                              9,185.00$       765.39$        -$              8,419.61$       8.30%
12101 594809 Capital Building                                                             10,000.00$     -$              -$              10,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594810 Capital Equipment                                                            40,000.00$     -$              -$              40,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594819 Capital Other Equipment                                                      25,000.00$     20,700.00$   (20,700.00)$  25,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594821 Capital Improvement Land                                                     30,000.00$     -$              -$              30,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594822 Capital Improvement Building                                                 24,000.00$     -$              -$              24,000.00$     0.00%

TOTAL Fair Park Activities          129,000.00$   45,364.63$   (18,950.00)$  102,585.37$   20.50%

TOTAL REVENUES (579,430.00)$  (10,952.89)$  -$              (568,477.11)$  
TOTAL EXPENSES 708,430.00$   56,317.52$   (18,950.00)$  671,062.48$   



MARCH 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

FAIR WEEK

REVENUES
12102 411100 General Property Taxes                                                       17,692.00$     1,474.33$     -$              16,217.67$     8.30%
12102 421001 State Aid                                                                    (7,176.00)$      -$              -$              (7,176.00)$      0.00%
12102 457005 Reserved Seating Fees                                                        (40,000.00)$    (8,625.00)$    -$              (31,375.00)$    21.60%
12102 457009 Contest Entry Fees                                                           (800.00)$         -$              -$              (800.00)$         0.00%
12102 457010 Sponsor Revenue                                                              (100,000.00)$  -$              -$              (100,000.00)$  0.00%
12102 457011 Gate Receipts                                                                (240,000.00)$  (6,550.00)$    -$              (233,450.00)$  2.70%
12102 457013 Stall & Pen Fees                                                             (4,500.00)$      -$              -$              (4,500.00)$      0.00%
12102 457021 Premium Book Sales                                                           (100.00)$         -$              -$              (100.00)$         0.00%
12102 457029 FFA Enrollment                                                               (6,500.00)$      -$              -$              (6,500.00)$      0.00%
12102 457030 Credit Card Surcharge                                                        (1,000.00)$      (1,257.50)$    -$              257.50$          125.80%
12102 457034 Parking Fees                                                                 -$                (75.83)$         -$              75.83$            0.00%
12102 459001 Soda                                                                         (15,000.00)$    -$              -$              (15,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482015 Space-Food Vendor                                                            (32,000.00)$    -$              -$              (32,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482016 Space-Beverage Vendor                                                        (75,000.00)$    -$              -$              (75,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482017 Space-Other Vendor                                                           (25,000.00)$    -$              -$              (25,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482018 Space-Carnival                                                               (30,000.00)$    -$              -$              (30,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482019 Camping Fee 4-H                                                              (22,000.00)$    (19,690.00)$  -$              (2,310.00)$      89.50%
12102 482020 Camping Fee Vendor                                                           (1,500.00)$      -$              -$              (1,500.00)$      0.00%

EXPENDITURES
12102 511110 Salary-Permanent Regular                                                     46,833.00$     877.94$        -$              45,955.06$     1.90%
12102 511210 Wages-Regular                                                                29,999.00$     982.81$        -$              29,016.19$     3.30%
12102 511220 Wages-Overtime                                                               11,252.00$     -$              -$              11,252.00$     0.00%
12102 511240 Wages-Temporary                                                              40,353.00$     561.00$        -$              39,792.00$     1.40%
12102 511310 Wages-Sick Leave                                                             -$                421.20$        -$              (421.20)$         0.00%
12102 511330 Wages-Longevity Pay                                                          71.00$            -$              -$              71.00$            0.00%
12102 511350 Wages-Miscellaneous(Comp)                                                    -$                234.70$        -$              (234.70)$         0.00%
12102 512141 Social Security                                                              9,770.00$       230.82$        -$              9,539.18$       2.40%
12102 512142 Retirement (Employer)                                                        6,312.00$       168.64$        -$              6,143.36$       2.70%
12102 512143 Retirement (Employee)                                                        183.00$          -$              -$              183.00$          0.00%
12102 512144 Health Insurance                                                             12,545.00$     369.28$        -$              12,175.72$     2.90%
12102 512145 Life Insurance                                                               51.00$            0.66$            -$              50.34$            1.30%
12102 512150 FSA Contribution                                                             175.00$          -$              -$              175.00$          0.00%
12102 512173 Dental Insurance                                                             1,235.00$       -$              -$              1,235.00$       0.00%
12102 521219 Other Professional Serv                                                      15,200.00$     -$              -$              15,200.00$     0.00%
12102 521647 Veterinary Services                                                          750.00$          -$              -$              750.00$          0.00%
12102 521648 Ambulance/EMA Services                                                       3,000.00$       -$              -$              3,000.00$       0.00%
12102 521649 Security Services                                                            5,200.00$       -$              -$              5,200.00$       0.00%
12102 529301 Fair Gate Workers                                                            6,000.00$       -$              -$              6,000.00$       0.00%
12102 529302 Fair Judges                                                                  7,305.00$       -$              -$              7,305.00$       0.00%
12102 529303 Fair Superintendents                                                         5,800.00$       -$              -$              5,800.00$       0.00%
12102 529304 Fair Parking Services                                                        1,800.00$       -$              -$              1,800.00$       0.00%
12102 531001 Credit Card Fees                                                             1,850.00$       77.47$          -$              1,772.53$       4.20%
12102 531101 Tickets/Entry Tags                                                           4,650.00$       -$              -$              4,650.00$       0.00%
12102 531102 Trophies/Plaques                                                             400.00$          -$              -$              400.00$          0.00%
12102 531103 Ribbons                                                                      2,900.00$       -$              -$              2,900.00$       0.00%
12102 531181 Premiums                                                                     19,000.00$     -$              -$              19,000.00$     0.00%
12102 531182 Fair Week Special Acts                                                       185,000.00$   -$              -$              185,000.00$   0.00%
12102 531183 Sponsor Fees                                                                 2,500.00$       -$              -$              2,500.00$       0.00%
12102 531184 Fairest Of The Fair                                                          1,000.00$       -$              -$              1,000.00$       0.00%
12102 531311 Postage & Box Rent                                                           500.00$          -$              -$              500.00$          0.00%
12102 531312 Office Supplies                                                              400.00$          -$              -$              400.00$          0.00%
12102 531313 Printing & Duplicating                                                       250.00$          -$              -$              250.00$          0.00%



MARCH 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

12102 531314 Small Items Of Equipment                                                     700.00$          -$              -$              700.00$          0.00%
12102 531326 Advertising                                                                  37,500.00$     110.34$        -$              37,389.66$     0.30%
12102 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     750.00$          -$              -$              750.00$          0.00%
12102 531351 Gas/Diesel                                                                   1,000.00$       -$              -$              1,000.00$       0.00%
12102 531367 Wood Shavings                                                                2,000.00$       -$              -$              2,000.00$       0.00%
12102 532332 Mileage                                                                      200.00$          -$              -$              200.00$          0.00%
12102 533221 Water                                                                        788.00$          -$              -$              788.00$          0.00%
12102 533222 Electric                                                                     6,556.00$       -$              -$              6,556.00$       0.00%
12102 533223 Sewer                                                                        1,490.00$       -$              -$              1,490.00$       0.00%
12102 533224 Natural Gas                                                                  70.00$            -$              -$              70.00$            0.00%
12102 533235 Storm Water Utility                                                          713.00$          -$              -$              713.00$          0.00%
12102 535245 Grounds Improvements                                                         800.00$          182.17$        -$              617.83$          22.80%
12102 535297 Refuse Collection                                                            4,600.00$       -$              -$              4,600.00$       0.00%
12102 535347 Beverage Purchases                                                           16,000.00$     -$              -$              16,000.00$     0.00%
12102 535355 Plumbing & Electrical                                                        750.00$          -$              -$              750.00$          0.00%
12102 536533 Equipment Rent & Lease                                                       80,000.00$     -$              21,055.06$   58,944.94$     26.30%
12102 571009 MIS PC Group Allocation                                                      1,247.00$       103.92$        -$              1,143.08$       8.30%
12102 571010 MIS Systems Grp Alloc(ISIS)                                                  1,946.00$       162.17$        -$              1,783.83$       8.30%
12102 591519 Other Insurance                                                              3,490.00$       290.86$        -$              3,199.14$       8.30%

TOTAL Fair Week                     -$                (29,950.02)$  21,055.06$   8,894.96$       0.00%

TOTAL REVENUES (582,884.00)$  (34,724.00)$  -$              (548,160.00)$  
TOTAL EXPENSES 582,884.00$   4,773.98$     21,055.06$   557,054.96$   

FAIR EXPANSION

REVENUES
12103 485106 Fair Expansion Donations                                                     (32,302.00)$    -$              -$              (32,301.79)$    0.00%

EXPENDITURES
12103 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     -$                -$              3,396.00$     (3,396.00)$      0.00%
12103 594960 Capital Reserve                                                              32,302.00$     -$              -$              32,301.79$     0.00%

TOTAL Fair Expansion Donations      -$                -$              3,396.00$     (3,396.00)$      0.00%

TOTAL REVENUES (32,302.00)$    -$              -$              (32,301.79)$    
TOTAL EXPENSES 32,302.00$     -$              3,396.00$     28,905.79$     

GRAND TOTAL 129,000.00$   15,414.61$   5,501.06$     108,084.33$   16.20%



APRIL 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

FAIR PARK

REVENUES
12101 411100 General Property Taxes                                                       (71,430.00)$    (5,952.50)$    -$               (65,477.50)$    8.30%
12101 457010 Sponsor Revenue                                                              (50,000.00)$    (26,880.50)$  -$               (23,119.50)$    53.80%
12101 457025 Horse Show Fees                                                              (23,000.00)$    (687.50)$       -$               (22,312.50)$    3.00%
12101 457026 Shaving Sales                                                                (34,000.00)$    -$              -$               (34,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 474169 Fair Billed                                                                  (4,000.00)$      -$              -$               (4,000.00)$      0.00%
12101 482012 Building Rental                                                              (176,000.00)$  (4,798.06)$    -$               (171,201.94)$  2.70%
12101 482013 Stall Rental                                                                 (83,000.00)$    -$              -$               (83,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 482014 Winter Storage Rental                                                        (45,000.00)$    -$              -$               (45,000.00)$    0.00%
12101 482015 Space-Food Vendor                                                            (18,000.00)$    (592.77)$       -$               (17,407.23)$    3.30%
12101 482016 Space-Beverage Vendor                                                        (17,000.00)$    (371.52)$       -$               (16,628.48)$    2.20%
12101 482017 Space-Other Vendor                                                           (5,000.00)$      -$              -$               (5,000.00)$      0.00%
12101 482021 Camping Fee Other                                                            (52,000.00)$    (552.50)$       -$               (51,447.50)$    1.10%
12101 482100 Prior Year Rent Income                                                       -$                (300.00)$       -$               300.00$          0.00%
12101 486001 Vending Commission                                                           (1,000.00)$      (36.63)$         -$               (963.37)$         3.70%

EXPENDITURES
12101 511110 Salary-Permanent Regular                                                     106,413.00$   4,450.60$     -$               101,962.40$   4.20%
12101 511210 Wages-Regular                                                                126,295.00$   8,848.63$     -$               117,446.37$   7.00%
12101 511220 Wages-Overtime                                                               145.00$          388.30$        -$               (243.30)$         267.80%
12101 511240 Wages-Temporary                                                              15,484.00$     1,653.68$     -$               13,830.32$     10.70%
12101 511310 Wages-Sick Leave                                                             -$                404.65$        -$               (404.65)$         0.00%
12101 511320 Wages-Vacation Pay                                                           -$                140.40$        -$               (140.40)$         0.00%
12101 511330 Wages-Longevity Pay                                                          285.00$          -$              -$               285.00$          0.00%
12101 511340 Wages-Holiday Pay                                                            -$                210.27$        -$               (210.27)$         0.00%
12101 511350 Wages-Miscellaneous(Comp)                                                    -$                208.02$        -$               (208.02)$         0.00%
12101 512141 Social Security                                                              18,864.00$     1,225.74$     -$               17,638.26$     6.50%
12101 512142 Retirement (Employer)                                                        13,241.00$     794.72$        -$               12,446.28$     6.00%
12101 512144 Health Insurance                                                             31,767.00$     2,721.42$     -$               29,045.58$     8.60%
12101 512145 Life Insurance                                                               73.00$            2.59$            -$               70.41$            3.50%
12101 512148 Unemployment Compensation                                                    -$                1,797.90$     -$               (1,797.90)$      0.00%
12101 512150 FSA Contribution                                                             450.00$          -$              -$               450.00$          0.00%
12101 512173 Dental Insurance                                                             3,589.00$       253.11$        -$               3,335.89$       7.10%
12101 521219 Other Professional Serv                                                      600.00$          -$              -$               600.00$          0.00%
12101 521297 Stall Cleaning                                                               4,500.00$       -$              -$               4,500.00$       0.00%
12101 529170 Grounds Keeping Charges                                                      24,323.00$     894.28$        -$               23,428.72$     3.70%
12101 531301 Office Equipment                                                             500.00$          -$              -$               500.00$          0.00%
12101 531303 Computer Equipmt & Software                                                  2,000.00$       -$              -$               2,000.00$       0.00%
12101 531311 Postage & Box Rent                                                           200.00$          248.76$        -$               (48.76)$           124.40%
12101 531312 Office Supplies                                                              1,600.00$       57.15$          -$               1,542.85$       3.60%
12101 531313 Printing & Duplicating                                                       1,400.00$       1,041.83$     -$               358.17$          74.40%
12101 531314 Small Items Of Equipment                                                     4,000.00$       -$              -$               4,000.00$       0.00%
12101 531320 Safety Supplies                                                              750.00$          10.15$          -$               739.85$          1.40%
12101 531322 Subscriptions                                                                200.00$          50.00$          -$               150.00$          25.00%
12101 531324 Membership Dues                                                              1,300.00$       708.10$        -$               591.90$          54.50%
12101 531326 Advertising                                                                  4,500.00$       15.00$          -$               4,485.00$       0.30%
12101 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     1,500.00$       556.21$        -$               943.79$          37.10%
12101 531351 Gas/Diesel                                                                   6,000.00$       -$              -$               6,000.00$       0.00%
12101 531367 Wood Shavings                                                                22,000.00$     -$              -$               22,000.00$     0.00%
12101 532325 Registration                                                                 1,200.00$       -$              -$               1,200.00$       0.00%
12101 532332 Mileage                                                                      200.00$          -$              -$               200.00$          0.00%
12101 532334 Commercial Travel                                                            1,500.00$       -$              -$               1,500.00$       0.00%
12101 532335 Meals                                                                        850.00$          -$              -$               850.00$          0.00%
12101 532336 Lodging                                                                      3,500.00$       -$              -$               3,500.00$       0.00%
12101 532339 Other Travel & Tolls                                                         30.00$            -$              -$               30.00$            0.00%



APRIL 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

12101 533221 Water                                                                        10,000.00$     618.78$        -$               9,381.22$       6.20%
12101 533222 Electric                                                                     40,000.00$     2,329.46$     -$               37,670.54$     5.80%
12101 533223 Sewer                                                                        8,100.00$       521.10$        -$               7,578.90$       6.40%
12101 533224 Natural Gas                                                                  5,200.00$       451.42$        -$               4,748.58$       8.70%
12101 533225 Telephone & Fax                                                              2,000.00$       90.23$          -$               1,909.77$       4.50%
12101 533235 Storm Water Utility                                                          17,000.00$     1,424.52$     -$               15,575.48$     8.40%
12101 533236 Wireless Internet                                                            360.00$          -$              -$               360.00$          0.00%
12101 535232 Graveling                                                                    3,500.00$       -$              -$               3,500.00$       0.00%
12101 535242 Maintain Machinery & Equip                                                   6,000.00$       149.11$        -$               5,850.89$       2.50%
12101 535245 Grounds Improvements                                                         10,000.00$     176.25$        -$               9,823.75$       1.80%
12101 535247 Building Repair & Maint                                                      18,000.00$     160.46$        -$               17,839.54$     0.90%
12101 535297 Refuse Collection                                                            9,000.00$       364.89$        -$               8,635.11$       4.10%
12101 535344 Household & Janitorial Supp                                                  7,000.00$       2,669.35$     -$               4,330.65$       38.10%
12101 535347 Beverage Purchases                                                           10,000.00$     141.97$        -$               9,858.03$       1.40%
12101 535349 Other Supplies                                                               -$                166.23$        -$               (166.23)$         0.00%
12101 535352 Vehicle Parts & Repairs                                                      3,000.00$       18.98$          -$               2,981.02$       0.60%
12101 535355 Plumbing & Electrical                                                        7,000.00$       4,049.54$     (1,750.00)$     4,700.46$       32.90%
12101 536533 Equipment Rent & Lease                                                       1,000.00$       -$              -$               1,000.00$       0.00%
12101 571004 IP Telephony Allocation                                                      869.00$          72.42$          -$               796.58$          8.30%
12101 571005 Duplicating Allocation                                                       821.00$          68.42$          -$               752.58$          8.30%
12101 571009 MIS PC Group Allocation                                                      7,900.00$       658.33$        -$               7,241.67$       8.30%
12101 571010 MIS Systems Grp Alloc(ISIS)                                                  4,236.00$       353.00$        -$               3,883.00$       8.30%
12101 591519 Other Insurance                                                              9,185.00$       765.39$        -$               8,419.61$       8.30%
12101 594809 Capital Building                                                             10,000.00$     -$              -$               10,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594810 Capital Equipment                                                            40,000.00$     -$              -$               40,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594819 Capital Other Equipment                                                      25,000.00$     -$              -$               25,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594821 Capital Improvement Land                                                     30,000.00$     -$              -$               30,000.00$     0.00%
12101 594822 Capital Improvement Building                                                 24,000.00$     -$              -$               24,000.00$     0.00%

TOTAL Fair Park Activities          129,000.00$   1,759.38$     (1,750.00)$     128,990.62$   0.00%

TOTAL REVENUES (579,430.00)$  (40,171.98)$  -$               (539,258.02)$  
TOTAL EXPENSES 708,430.00$   41,931.36$   (1,750.00)$     668,248.64$   



APRIL 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

FAIR WEEK

REVENUES
12102 411100 General Property Taxes                                                       17,692.00$     1,474.33$     -$               16,217.67$     8.30%
12102 421001 State Aid                                                                    (7,176.00)$      (7,632.30)$    -$               456.30$          106.40%
12102 457005 Reserved Seating Fees                                                        (40,000.00)$    (3,130.00)$    -$               (36,870.00)$    7.80%
12102 457009 Contest Entry Fees                                                           (800.00)$         -$              -$               (800.00)$         0.00%
12102 457010 Sponsor Revenue                                                              (100,000.00)$  (19,119.50)$  -$               (80,880.50)$    19.10%
12102 457011 Gate Receipts                                                                (240,000.00)$  (450.00)$       -$               (239,550.00)$  0.20%
12102 457013 Stall & Pen Fees                                                             (4,500.00)$      (685.00)$       -$               (3,815.00)$      15.20%
12102 457021 Premium Book Sales                                                           (100.00)$         (155.00)$       -$               55.00$            155.00%
12102 457029 FFA Enrollment                                                               (6,500.00)$      (607.00)$       -$               (5,893.00)$      9.30%
12102 457030 Credit Card Surcharge                                                        (1,000.00)$      (456.00)$       -$               (544.00)$         45.60%
12102 457034 Parking Fees                                                                 -$                (80.00)$         -$               80.00$            0.00%
12102 459001 Soda                                                                         (15,000.00)$    -$              -$               (15,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482015 Space-Food Vendor                                                            (32,000.00)$    (1,245.00)$    -$               (30,755.00)$    3.90%
12102 482016 Space-Beverage Vendor                                                        (75,000.00)$    -$              -$               (75,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482017 Space-Other Vendor                                                           (25,000.00)$    -$              -$               (25,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482018 Space-Carnival                                                               (30,000.00)$    -$              -$               (30,000.00)$    0.00%
12102 482019 Camping Fee 4-H                                                              (22,000.00)$    (315.00)$       -$               (21,685.00)$    1.40%
12102 482020 Camping Fee Vendor                                                           (1,500.00)$      -$              -$               (1,500.00)$      0.00%

EXPENDITURES
12102 511110 Salary-Permanent Regular                                                     46,833.00$     1,112.64$     -$               45,720.36$     2.40%
12102 511210 Wages-Regular                                                                29,999.00$     1,684.79$     -$               28,314.21$     5.60%
12102 511220 Wages-Overtime                                                               11,252.00$     -$              -$               11,252.00$     0.00%
12102 511240 Wages-Temporary                                                              40,353.00$     283.25$        -$               40,069.75$     0.70%
12102 511330 Wages-Longevity Pay                                                          71.00$            -$              -$               71.00$            0.00%
12102 512141 Social Security                                                              9,770.00$       227.85$        -$               9,542.15$       2.30%
12102 512142 Retirement (Employer)                                                        6,312.00$       187.43$        -$               6,124.57$       3.00%
12102 512143 Retirement (Employee)                                                        183.00$          -$              -$               183.00$          0.00%
12102 512144 Health Insurance                                                             12,545.00$     971.24$        -$               11,573.76$     7.70%
12102 512145 Life Insurance                                                               51.00$            0.74$            -$               50.26$            1.50%
12102 512150 FSA Contribution                                                             175.00$          -$              -$               175.00$          0.00%
12102 512173 Dental Insurance                                                             1,235.00$       58.89$          -$               1,176.11$       4.80%
12102 521219 Other Professional Serv                                                      15,200.00$     -$              -$               15,200.00$     0.00%
12102 521647 Veterinary Services                                                          750.00$          -$              -$               750.00$          0.00%
12102 521648 Ambulance/EMA Services                                                       3,000.00$       -$              -$               3,000.00$       0.00%
12102 521649 Security Services                                                            5,200.00$       -$              -$               5,200.00$       0.00%
12102 529301 Fair Gate Workers                                                            6,000.00$       -$              -$               6,000.00$       0.00%
12102 529302 Fair Judges                                                                  7,305.00$       -$              -$               7,305.00$       0.00%
12102 529303 Fair Superintendents                                                         5,800.00$       -$              -$               5,800.00$       0.00%
12102 529304 Fair Parking Services                                                        1,800.00$       -$              -$               1,800.00$       0.00%
12102 531001 Credit Card Fees                                                             1,850.00$       1,213.38$     -$               636.62$          65.60%
12102 531101 Tickets/Entry Tags                                                           4,650.00$       -$              -$               4,650.00$       0.00%
12102 531102 Trophies/Plaques                                                             400.00$          -$              -$               400.00$          0.00%
12102 531103 Ribbons                                                                      2,900.00$       -$              -$               2,900.00$       0.00%
12102 531181 Premiums                                                                     19,000.00$     -$              -$               19,000.00$     0.00%
12102 531182 Fair Week Special Acts                                                       185,000.00$   -$              -$               185,000.00$   0.00%
12102 531183 Sponsor Fees                                                                 2,500.00$       -$              -$               2,500.00$       0.00%
12102 531184 Fairest Of The Fair                                                          1,000.00$       -$              -$               1,000.00$       0.00%
12102 531311 Postage & Box Rent                                                           500.00$          63.47$          -$               436.53$          12.70%
12102 531312 Office Supplies                                                              400.00$          44.95$          -$               355.05$          11.20%
12102 531313 Printing & Duplicating                                                       250.00$          -$              -$               250.00$          0.00%
12102 531314 Small Items Of Equipment                                                     700.00$          -$              -$               700.00$          0.00%
12102 531326 Advertising                                                                  37,500.00$     1,626.00$     -$               35,874.00$     4.30%
12102 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     750.00$          216.23$        -$               533.77$          28.80%



APRIL 2018
ACCOUNTS FOR: REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCESBUDGET USED

12102 531351 Gas/Diesel                                                                   1,000.00$       -$              -$               1,000.00$       0.00%
12102 531367 Wood Shavings                                                                2,000.00$       -$              -$               2,000.00$       0.00%
12102 532332 Mileage                                                                      200.00$          -$              -$               200.00$          0.00%
12102 533221 Water                                                                        788.00$          -$              -$               788.00$          0.00%
12102 533222 Electric                                                                     6,556.00$       -$              -$               6,556.00$       0.00%
12102 533223 Sewer                                                                        1,490.00$       -$              -$               1,490.00$       0.00%
12102 533224 Natural Gas                                                                  70.00$            -$              -$               70.00$            0.00%
12102 533235 Storm Water Utility                                                          713.00$          -$              -$               713.00$          0.00%
12102 535245 Grounds Improvements                                                         800.00$          -$              -$               800.00$          0.00%
12102 535297 Refuse Collection                                                            4,600.00$       -$              -$               4,600.00$       0.00%
12102 535347 Beverage Purchases                                                           16,000.00$     -$              -$               16,000.00$     0.00%
12102 535355 Plumbing & Electrical                                                        750.00$          -$              -$               750.00$          0.00%
12102 536533 Equipment Rent & Lease                                                       80,000.00$     -$              -$               80,000.00$     0.00%
12102 571009 MIS PC Group Allocation                                                      1,247.00$       103.92$        -$               1,143.08$       8.30%
12102 571010 MIS Systems Grp Alloc(ISIS)                                                  1,946.00$       162.17$        -$               1,783.83$       8.30%
12102 591519 Other Insurance                                                              3,490.00$       290.86$        -$               3,199.14$       8.30%

TOTAL Fair Week                     -$                (24,152.66)$  -$               24,152.66$     0.00%

TOTAL REVENUES (582,884.00)$  (32,400.47)$  -$               (550,483.53)$  
TOTAL EXPENSES 582,884.00$   8,247.81$     -$               574,636.19$   

12103 531349 Other Operating Expenses                                                     -$                3,396.00$     (3,396.00)$     -$                0.00%

TOTAL Fair Expansion Donations      -$                3,396.00$     (3,396.00)$     -$                0.00%

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                3,396.00$     (3,396.00)$     -$                

GRAND TOTAL 129,000.00$   (18,997.28)$  (5,146.00)$     153,143.28$   -18.70%



Fair Park Supervisors Report 
June 7, 2018 

 
Wash Rack and Swine Barn 
I am waiting to hear back from a plumber to get plans for the design for the wash rack and lift pump. This would 
then have to be approved by the State to get a permit from the City. Design Alliance has a concept plan based on 
where we want to locate the restroom and lift pump. I have 2 quotes for directional drilling for a 2” sewer line. Waas  
Boring & Cable Inc. from Lomira was $12,150 and Herr out of Dousman is $7,200. We could go under the MAP 
Building for $6,500 but this would cost more to connect and long term may be in the way if we do other 
construction or if the pipe ever needs service it could be a problem. 
Bos Cleary is getting quotes on the 16’ x 30’ building. 
Bos Cleary is also getting quotes on new metal siding the North end of the Swine Barn. Jones Dairy Farm wants to 
put up new signs and the wood is old and peeling and more paint would not look good or last.   
 
Trenched in 2 - 1 ½” pipes 
Working with our electrician we buried 2 pipes 1 for the fiber optics for ticketing and the other is for our speaker 
wires. We will now get rid of much of the overhead wire 
Netwurx dropped off 1000’ of fiber and is getting the contract ready to complete the WIFI 
 
Tyler Hoffmann was hired on as our 1 summer staff on grounds 
 
Fair - Grounds staff has 5 returning, 2 new hires and will hire 2 more. 
 
We had a transformer get hit sometime on May 19th. The power went out in the city at around 10 pm. We did not 
find the damage until Wednesday May 24th.  This was a 50 kva and we replaced it with a larger 100 kva as was 
recommended by our electrician. Do not know who hit it and the police had no record of any incident happening out 
here. Jefferson Utilities did the replacement and we are waiting for the bill. I did file an insurance claim but it has a 
$5,000 deductible 
 
We had over 40 Jefferson High school students doing community service work June 1st 12:30 – 2:30 pm 
Staining fence, announcers stand and stage, cleaning stones and garbage off track, pulling staples, cleaning sheep 
barn, cleaning Indoor Arena, washing windows 
 
Getting quotes for blacktop and resealing to be done after Fair. We will have to replace blacktop in some areas and 
reseal and stripe the rest.  
I will have the handicap lot striped for Fair. 
 
We have a lot to get done before Fair 
4 Bleachers to build (1 a week if possible) 
Run the 600’ of fiber 
Rewire outside speakers 
June 22 - Photo, Rabbit and Poultry Set up, 
All building and grounds set up after 
Tent set up the week of July 4th  
 



Jefferson County Fair Park Committee Meeting 
Thursday, June 7, 2018 

 
 

Fair Office Report 
 

 Reconciling May Fair Park events  
 Junior Fair Entries are in and the office is now just helping with any changes or 

cancellations.  
 Open Class entries are due June 15.  A mailing was sent to all past open/senior 

exhibitors to encourage them to sign up for the fair. 
 Final Fair Sign-up Presentation to help people register for the Fair was held on May 

17th 
 Family 5 Packs are on sale until July 10th or until sold out 
 Sharing an intern from Maranatha Baptist University with other departments at the 

Courthouse. He will start June 6th and his primary focus at the Fair Park will be 
researching and implementing a merchandise sales plan.  

 Vendor contracts are available and vendor payments are coming in.  
 Yard signs and brochures are available for distribution. 
 Catching up on other projects: 

o Keeping website, JCFP TV ads, radio commercials and social media up-to-
date with event information and Fair updates. 

o Sponsorships 
o Advertising 

 
 


	1 Fair Agenda - June 2018
	2 Minutes May 3 2018
	3A Jefferson County Fair Assessment March 2017
	3B Letter Report on JCFP Economic Impacts 2007
	3C Master Plan Update Sept 2014
	3D Strategic Meeting Report Jan 2017
	4 Financials - MARCH 2018
	4A Financials - APRIL 2018
	5 Fair Park Supervisors Report 6-7-18
	6 Office Report June 2018


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /Unknown

  /Description <<
    /FRA <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create PDF documents with higher image resolution for improved printing quality. The PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /JPN <FEFF3053306e8a2d5b9a306f30019ad889e350cf5ea6753b50cf3092542b308000200050004400460020658766f830924f5c62103059308b3068304d306b4f7f75283057307e30593002537052376642306e753b8cea3092670059279650306b4fdd306430533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103057305f00200050004400460020658766f8306f0020004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d30678868793a3067304d307e30593002>
    /DEU <>
    /PTB <>
    /DAN <>
    /NLD <>
    /ESP <>
    /SUO <>
    /ITA <>
    /NOR <>
    /SVE <>
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


